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Date: 2"d September, 2022

To, To,

Department of Corporate Services The Secretary,

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
P.J.Towers, Dalal Street 7, Lyons Range,

Mumbai- 400 001 Kolkata- 700 001

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Submission of Annual Report 2021-22, and Notice of 31t Annual General Meeting of the

Regulations, 2015

Please find enclosed herewith, pursuant to Regulation 34(1) and Regulation 30 read with paragraph A of Part
A of Schedule III of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Notice of the
ensuing 31t Annual General Meeting of the Company along with the Annual Report of the Company for the
Financial Year 2021-22.

The 31%t Annual General Meeting (AGM) of ntc industries limited will be held on Saturday, the 24t
September 2022 at 12:30 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing ("VC")/Other Audio-Visual Means
("OAVM").

In compliance with the General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8 April 2020, no. 17/2020 dated 13 April 2020
no. 20/2020 dated 05 May 2020, 02/2021 dated 13 January, 2021 and 02/2022 dated 05 May, 2022, issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI Circular no. SEBI /HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12 May
2020, SEBI /HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15 January 2021 and SEBI /HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2022/62
dated 13 May, 2022, the Notice of the 31st AGM along with the Annual Report for the FY 2021-22 have been
sent only through electronic mode to those members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depositories.

Further, the Notice of 315t AGM and the Annual Report for the FY 2021-22 are also made available on the
website of the Company at https://www.ntcind.com/annual-report/.

Request you to kindly take the above intimation on record.
Thanking You.

Yours faithfully
For ntc industries limited
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Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
ACS 31574

e-mail ID : info@nicind.com, Website : www.ntcind.com, CIN : L70109WB1991PLC053562
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

In this annual report, we have disclosed forwardHoocking information fo enable invesiors fo comprehend our
prospecis and take informed investment decisions. This report and other statements — wrilten and oral — that we
penodically make, may contain forward-looking statements thal sef ouf anbcipated resulls based on the
management's plans and assumptions. We have fned wherever possible fo ideniify such sfatemenis by using words
such as ‘anficipafes’, ‘estimales’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, Intends’, plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance m
connection with any discussion of fufure performance.

We cannot quarantee that these forward-ooking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been
prudent in our assumplions. The achievement of resulfs is subject to rsks, uncerfanties and even Inaccurafe
assumphions. Should known or unknown risks or uncerlainties materalise, or should underlying assumptions prove
inaccurafe, actual resulis could vary malerially from those anficipated, estimated or projecied. We undertake no
obligation to publicly updafe any forward-ooking sfatements, whether as a resulf of new informalion, fulure evenis

or othernwise.
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ABOUT US

ntc industries Ltd. is one of the oldest manufacturer
of cigarettes in India. On September 1931 the
company was incorporated as National Tobacco
Company of India Ltd. In 1994 RDB Industries Ltd.
purchased the asset and goodwill of the company
and lafter become to be known as ntc industries
Limited.

ntc is one of the few companies in India having
license to manufacture cigarsttes.

The company has a solid foundation with visionary
Leadership from the Board of Members who are
supported by experienced and dedicated
professionals, the best talents in their respective
fields, who have helped to achieve optimum
efficiency in cigarettes manufacturing, marketing &

export.

nte is prominent among cigarettes manufacturer in
India with a wide range of brands. ntc has a
presence in all segment of market. nte's popular
portfolio of brands include Regent, Cool, No.10,
Maypole, Jaipur, General. ntc is the market leader of
‘roll-your-own-tobacco’ (Prince Henry) in India. The
company pioneered the introduction of 84 mm King
Size filter cigarettes, mentholated cigarettes in India.

ntc has a modem PMD for tobacco processing of
any blend type-Virginia or American. We can make
and develop finest blends to suit customer choice.,

ntc's SMD for making & packing is well equipped
with full range of modern machineries to produce
quality cigarettes as well as excellent finished
packets in conformation to International Standards.
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nitc exports cigareltes to South America, African
Countries and Middie East Countries.

ntec also undertakes contract for manufacture and
deliver products blended and packaged to very
exact specification of the customers.

ntc has won recognition for excellence in quality at
various forums including the World Tobacco
Products Contest in Brussels, Rotterdam,
Amsterdam, Paris and Luxemburg.

ntc, in the past, produced brands like Rothmans
King Size, Oxford King, under license from
Rothmans of Pall Mall.

ntc had an agreement in past with Sampoma Asia
pte. of Indonesia to import and distribute Exclusive’
brand of clove cigareties in India.

The company is working with single minded focus
on continuous value creation for customer, through
R&D in creating quality blends, maintaining
consistent quality with state of the art
manufacturing technology. nte has consistently
maintained qualily parameters with the Product

Quality Rating System.
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ntc industries limited
149, B.T. Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata -700 058

FPhone: +91-7595046813 | E-mail: investors@ntcind.com | www.nicind.com
CIN: LT0109WB19891PLCD53562

NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the 31% Annual General Meeting of the Members of nic industries limited will be held on
Saturday, 24th September, 2022 at 12.30 p.m through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)
to transact the following businesses: -

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including Consoclidated Audited Financial
Statements) of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Privawart Jariwala (DIN: 09148113) who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary
Hesolution

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 139, Section 142 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under as amended from time to
time, and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the Board of directors of the
Company, M/s R. Rampuria & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 325211E) be and is hereby
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 312 Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration
as may be recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with auditors and approved by the Board
of Directors plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurrad by them for the
purpose of audit.”

By order of the Board
For ntc industries limited

Place: Kolkata sd/-
Date: 30th May, 2022 Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secretary
ACS 31574
NOTES

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, and Secretarial Standard- 2
on General Meeting, setting out the material facts concerning each item of Special Business to be transacted at
the meeting is not annexed to this Notice as there is no special business.

2. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) has vide its General
Circular No. 02/2022 dated 5th May 2022 read with General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January 2021,
General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated 5th May, 2020, General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated 13th April, 2020 and
General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated 8th April, 2020 (collectively referred to as “said Circulars”) and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its circulars dated May 13, 2022 read with circulars dated May 12,
2020 and January 15, 2021 permitted the holding of the "AGM” through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-
Visual Means (VC/OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. Accordingly, in
compliance with the provisions of the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being
held through VC / OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only. The
Company will conduct the AGM through VC/ OAVM from its Registered Office, ie, 149, B.T. road, Kamarhati,
Kaolkata 700058 which shall be deemed to be venue of the meeting.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on hisfher behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since the
AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
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for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route Map are not annexed fo this
notice.

4. The business set out in this Notice will also be transacted through electronic voting system and the Company is
providing facility for voting by electronic means through Mational Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).
Instructions and other information refating to e-voting are given in this Notice under Note no. 22. The Company
will also send communication relating to remote e-voting which inter-alia would contain details about User ID
and password along with a copy of this Notice to the members, separately.

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, whether partially or otherwise, the member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again. The members who cast their vote by using remote e-
voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the Meeting.

5. In terms of the provisions of Section 112 and 113 of the Act read with the said Circulars, Corporate/lnstitutional
Members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} are entitled to appoint their authorized representatives to
attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM on their behalf and participate thereat, including cast votes by electronic
means and are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority
letter etc. whereby their authorized representative has been appointed to attend the AGM on their behalf, to the
Company, together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to wvote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to scrutinizermkb@gmailcom with a copy marked to
investors@ntcind.com.

6. The details of Director seeking re-appointment in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015) and Secretarial Standard -2 are
annexed hereto and forms part of this Motice. The Directors have furnished the requisite declaration for their re-
appointment.

7. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for
transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical
shares and for ease of portfolic management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to
consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s
Registrars and Transfer Agents, Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd for assistance in this regard.

8. Members who hold shares in the physical form and wish to make/ change a nomination in respect of the
shareholding in the Company, as permitted u/s 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, may submit such information in
the prescribed form SH-13/14 as required, to the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

9 The Company has transferred to the Investor Education & Protection Fund, as per section 124 of the
Companies Act, 2013, all unclaimed/unpaid dividends for more than seven years. Further as per section 124 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, all shares in respect of which dividend is
unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years shall also be transferred to IEPF.

As per the requirements of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 ('IEPF Rules 2018}, the Company will be sending intimation to all the shareholders who
had not claimed/encashed their dividends consecutively for the last seven years informing them that in the
event those shareholders do not claim the same, the Company will be required to transfer the corresponding
shares to the IEPF Demat Account prescribed under the IEPF Rules, 2016. The Company will also
simultaneously publish notice in the leading newspapers in this regard and also upload the same on the
“Investors Section” of the Company's website details of such shareholders and shares which are due for
transfer to IEPF Demat Account.

10. In case of joint shareholders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names
will be entitled to vote.

11. To support the 'Green Initiative’, Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested
to register their e-mail address, in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their Depository
Participants or send an e-mail to nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com, for receiving all communications including
Annual Reports, Motices, Circulars, etc. from the Company elaectronically.

12. Non-Resident Indian Members are requestad to inform the RTA immediately of:
Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account
number and address of the Bank with pin code number.

[T ]
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13. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAM) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the
Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Niche Technologies Pvit Lid.

14. The Company has designated an exclusive e-mail ID investors@nicind.com which would enable the members
to communicate their grievances. The members may send their grievances, if any, to this e-mail ID for its quick
redressal.

16. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning accounts and operations of the Company are
requested to send their queries at an early date through email on investors@ntcind.com. The same will be
replied by the Company suitably.

16. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in their email 1D
or address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members are also requestad to notify any change in their email ID or bank mandates or address to
the company/RTA and always quote their Folio Number or DP 1D and Client ID Numbers in all correspondence
with the company/RTA.

17. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170
of the Companies Act 2013, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested under
Section 189 of the Companies Act 2013 will be available for inspection during the Annual General Meeting.
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send email at investors@ntcind.com.

18. Members who hold shares in identical names and in the same order of names in more than one folio are
requested to write to the company to consolidate their holdings in one folio.

19. The Company has sent individual letters to all the Members holding shares of the Company in physical form for
furnishing  their PAN, KYC  details and MNomination pursuant fto SEBI Circular Mo
SEBVHO/MIRSDIMIRSD_RTAME/P/CIR/2021/655 dated Movember 3, 2021 in Form ISR-1. The Form I1SR-1 is
alzo available on the website of the Company at weow ntcind. com. Attention of the Members holding shares of
the Company in physical form is invited to go through and submit the said Form ISR-1.

20. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular Mo. SEBI/ HO/MIRSDIMIRSD _RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8
dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the Listed Companies to issue securities in demat form only while
processing service requesis viz. lssue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from Unclaimed Suspense
Account; Renewal/lExchange of securities certificate; Endorsement; Subdivision/ Splitting of securities
certificate; Consolidation of securities cerificates/folios; Transmission and Transposition. Accordingly,
Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR—4, the
format of which is available on the Company's website under the weblink at www.ntcind.com and on the
website of the Company’s RTA at hittps://nichetechpl.com/downloads/. It may be noted that any service request
can be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant. SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has
mandated that all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and transposition requests shall be
processed only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated with physical
shares and avail various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised to dematerialise the shares held
by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or RTA, for assistance in this regard.

21 In compliance with the MCA Circulars dated May 05, 2022 and SEBI Circular dated May 13, 2022, Notice of
the AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the physical
copy of the Annual Report will not be sent. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 will
alzo be available on the Company's website www.nicind com, websites of the Stock Exchanges ie. BSE
Limited at www.bseindia.com and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd at www.cse-india.com and, and on the
website of NSDL https:flwww evoting.nsdl.com. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be
available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal business hours on working days.

22 Voting through electronic means

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of the (Listing
Regulations, 2015), the Company is pleased to provide remote e-voting facility to the members to exercise their
right to vote in respect of the resolutions to be passed at 31% Annual General Meeting by electronic means and
the business may be transacted through e-voting services provided by Mational Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL).The facility for casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other
than venue of the AGM{"remote e-voting”) will be provided by NSDL.
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I. The remote e-voting period shall commence on Wednesday, the 21% September, 2022, (500 a.m. IST) and will
end on Friday, the 23 September, 2022 (5:00 p.m. IST). During this period the members of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 17* September, 2022 (cut-off date for e-
voting) may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change
it subsequently.

Il. A person whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained
by the Depositories as on 17" September, 2022 (cut-off date) only shall be entitled to vote through remote e-
voting and through voting at the AGM. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of
the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date 17" September, 2022. A person who is
not a member as on cut-off date should treat this Motice for information purpose only.

.- The Company has appointed Sri Raj Kumar Banthia, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS Mo. 17190,
CP MNo. 18428) partner of MKB & Associates, as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting during the AGM and the
remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

IV. Members desiring to vote through remote e-voting may refer to the following steps:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Veting system

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for eVoting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI Circular No. SEBIfHO/CFD/CMDYCIR/Pf2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020, individual
members holding shares in dematerialised form can participate in the e-Voting process by way of a single
login credential, through their demat accounts or websites of depositories/DPs. Members are advised to
update their mobile number and email 1D in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of Login Method
shareholders
Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
Shareholders https://eservices nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On
Egirﬁgtgn?{?;;rili?ﬁ i the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
NSDL. which is available under 'IDeAS" section | this will prompt you to enter your

existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and
you will be re-directed to e-\oting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meesting & voting during
the meeting.
If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at hitps://eservices. nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or
click at https:/leservices nsdl com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReq jsp
3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https:/fwww evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on
the icon “Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Member section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User D (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote &-Voting period or joining virtual mesting & voting during
the meeting.

Il‘..l
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4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.
NSDL Mobile App is available on

" App Store , Google Play

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with
CD5L

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi /
Easiest are https-/fweb cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www . cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

After successful login of EasilEasiest the user will be also able to see the E
Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voling service provider ie.
MWSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

If the user is not registered for EasifEasiest, option to register is available at
https:/fweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Reqgistration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www. cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-
Voting is in progress.

Individual
Shareholders
{holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their
depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User IDf Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option available at above mentionad website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders heolding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual

Shareholders
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
toll free no.- 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

holding

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a reguest at
helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
022-23058542-43
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical
mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/fwww. evoting nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mohile.

2. 0Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login® which is available
under ‘Shareholder/member’ section.

3. A naw screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https:/leservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 ie. Cast your vote
electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL | Your User ID is:
or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in demat | & Character DP |D followed by & Digit Client ID

account with NSDL. For example if your DP 1D is IN300™" and Client 1D is
12 then your user 1D is IN300 ™" 12"

b) For Members who hold shares in demat | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary 1D is 12" then
your user [D jg et

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Mumber followed by Folio Number registered with
Form. the company

For example if folic number is 001" and EWVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the
‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password™?

i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a pdf file. Open the pdf file.
The password to open the pdf file is your & digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file
contains your ‘User ID' and your ‘initial password'.

{ii) If your e-mail ID is not registered, then please follow the steps as mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the ° Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
MSDL or CD5L) option available on www.evoting.nsdl_com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www evoting.nsdl.com.

c) W you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting{@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account numberffolio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address efc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL.

. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions™ by selecting on the check box.
8. Mow, you will have to click on “Login” button.
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9. After you click on the "Login” button, Home page of e-\Voting will open.
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join AGM on NSDL e-Voting system
How to cast your vote electronically and join AGM on NSDL e-Voting system?

I After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Il. Select "EVEN" of the company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
VC/0AVM link placed under “Join Meeting”.

lll. Mow you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.
IV. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also "Confirm” when prompted.

V. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successiully” will be displayed.

VI, You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.
VIl." Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote

General Guidelines for shareholders

I. Institutional shareholders {i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc) are required to send scanned copy
{(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letier etc. with aftested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail
scrutinizermkb@gmail. com with a copy marked to evoting@nsd|.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other
than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney [/ Authority
Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under "e-Woting” tab in
their login.

Il. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual sharehelders, who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and holding
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 17" September, 2022, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or lssuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote
e-voling, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your
password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset
Password” option available on www_evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22
4430 . In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of
the cut-off date ie. 17" September, 2022 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under
Step 1:"Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above).

L It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or "Physical User Reset Password? option available on www_ evoting nsdl.com to
reset the password.

IV.In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
toll free no.. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senijor

Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

V. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be
used for sending future communication(s).

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring
user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share cerificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investors{@ntcind.com or nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficiary 10), Mame, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
investors@ntcind.com or nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com. i you are an individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode, you are reguested to refer to the login methed explained at step 1 {A) i.e. Login
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method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a reqguest to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile
number and email D correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

The instructions for members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under: -

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM personally and have not casted their
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be
eligible to wote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4_ The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting
on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

5. Members are requested to follow the instructions, i any, provided during the currency of the AGM for
remote e-voting.

Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-
Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting
system. After successful login, you can see link of *VC/OAVM link™ placed under “Join Meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The
link for VC/OAVM will be available in ShareholderfMember login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned in the notice to aveid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

4. Facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM shall open 15 minutes before the time scheduled for the AGM
and shall be available for Members on first-come-first-served-basis

5. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at investors@nicind.com latest by 5.00 p.m. (I5ST) on between Tuesday,
20™ day of September, 2022 to Friday, 23" September, 2022

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name demat account numberffolic number, email id, mobile number at
investors@ntcind.com latest by 5.00.p.m. (I5T) on Wednesday, 21% day of September, 2022.The same will
be replied by the company suitably.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask guestions during the meeting.

9  When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the next
speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with a
video!/ camera along with good internet speed.

10. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as
appropriate, for smooth conduct of the AGM.
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11. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager,
NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call 1800 1020 390 / 1500 22 44 30.

12. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

Other Instructions
1. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the meeting, first count the votes cast during the
AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer shall submit not later than 2{two)
working days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign
the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

2. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the
Company www.ntcind.com and on the website of NSDL and also be displayed on the Notice Board of the
Company immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in
writing. The results shall also be simultaneously communicated to the Stock Exchange where the shares
of the Company are listed within 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM.

The scrutinizer's decision on the validity of e-voting will ba final.

The Motice of Annual General Meeting is being sent to the members, whose names appear in the

Register of Members/ Depositories as at closing hours of business, on 19" August, 2022

5. The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the AGM date ie, 24" September, 2022, subject to
receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the resolutions.

ol

Details of Director Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment at 315 Annual General Meeting pursuant to
Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial

Standard 2:

" Name of Director T Mr. Priyawart Jariwala o BN )

DIN 09148113

Date of Birth and Age 227 April, 1986 and 36 Years

Mationality Indian

Qualification Graduation

Relationship with other director/ KMP inter | None

=1

Date of first appointment on Board 227 May, 2021

Mature of expertise in specific functional | Production and distribution of the products manufactured by the
_area | Company

Brief profile Mr. Priyawart Jariwala has completed his graduation in Business

Management from London, UK. He has rich expericnce of
waorking with the top houses in the tobacco industry. Mr Jariwala
joined ntc in 2018, wherein he was responsible for handling
manufacturing operations. He was also instrumental in carrying
out significant improvements in site operations. He played
leadership role in the development of various strategies for
production and manufacturing. His young enthusiasm and
dyanamic visionary skills will be of immense help for the
Il company.

Mo. of equity shares held in the Company Mil

1. NTCIL INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED
2. NTCIL REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED

3. NTCIL REALTY PRIVATE LIMITED

4. NTCIL SILIGURI ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED

List of other companies in which
directorships are held

Committee Position held in ntc industries | Nil

ltd.
Committee Positions in  other Public | Nil

_Companies_ 1 b
Mo. of Board meetings attended during FY 9 (MNINE) e
2021-22
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasures in presenting the 31% Annual Report together with the Audited Statements of
Accounts for the financial year ended 31% March 2022.

Financial Highlights

The financial results of the Company during the year are given below:

(¥ in Lacs)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Year Year Year Year
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
1.a) Income from operations 2485 64 2376.38 331246 306663
b) Other income 53024 439.19 584 07 439 95
2 Expenses 2377.43 1883.15 250579 2038.81
Profiti{Loss) before interest :
and depreciation 638.45 932.43 1390.74 1467.76
Less: a) Finance Cost 2412 27.03 28 51 3.1
b) Depreciation 64.83 50.55 20382 190.66
RO (1osx) belorg 549.50 854.85 1158.41 1203.99
Exceptional ltems
Add: Exceptional ltems - - - -
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 549.50 854.85 1158.41 1203.99
Less:- Provisions for current tax,
deferred tax and tax adjustments 10522 22594 25722 400.31
for earlier years
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 444 .78 628.91 901.19 803.67
from last year - ' : :
Less: Amount transferred to » { » —
Heserves
we e cartiactnle Balancs 3387.66. 294338 573267 4831.48

Dividend & Reserves

The Company has ongoing need of financial resources, for the purpose of expansion activities. In order to meet
its growing funds requirement and conserve its resources and to plough back its entire profit into the expansion
activities, the directors have decided not to declare dividend for the financial year 2021-22.

The Company has not proposed any transfer to its Reserves.

Review of operations

During the period under review, the Company focused on improving productivity, reducing costs and utilized its
cash flows most effectively.

During the year under review, your company has achieved a total turnover of . 2025.00 Lakhs as compared to T
1907 .90 Lakhs in the previous year reflecting growth of 6.14%. The export sales increased to ¥ 1402.23 Lakhs
from T 1358.70 Lakhs reflecting growth of 3.21%. Your company has PBT of ¥. 54950 Lacs as comparad to
Profit of ¥. 854.85 Lacs in the previous year.

Change in nature of business, if any

During the year, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.
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Changes in Share Capital

The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 stood at ¥ 1194.40 Lacs. There has
been no change in the authorized and paid up capital of the Company during the year under purview. Further, the
Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any stock options or sweat equity
shares. As on March 31, 2022, none of the Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible into equity
shares of the Company.

Subsidiaries. Joint Ventures & Associate Companies

As on 315 March, 2022, your company has 4 wholly owned subsidiaries. During the financial year under review
none of the companies have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared a Consolidated
Financial Statement of the Company and all of its subsidiaries which is forming part of the Annual Report.

The Annual accounts of the subsidiary will be kept at the Registered Office of the Company and also at the
Registered Office of the subsidiary companies and will be available to the investors seeking information at any
time during the working hours of the Company except Saturday. Further as per section 136 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including the consolidated financial statements and related
information of the Company and audited accounts of each of the subsidiaries are available at our website. The
Company does not have any Joint Venture or Associate company.

Pursuant to proviso to Section 12%(3) of the Act a statement containing salient features of the financial
statements of the Company's subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is attached to the consolidated financial statements of
the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred to as “the Listing Regulations™) the Company has formulated a Policy on Material Subsidiary
and the same is available on the website of the Company at the link: htips:/fwww. nicind.comiwp-

content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-POLICY-ON-MATERIAL-SUBSIDIARY . pdf.

Further as per section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, including the
consolidated financial statements and related information of the Company and the annual audited accounts of

each of the subsidiaries are available at our website at https:/'www ntcind com/annual-report’.

Board of Directors:

The Board comprises of an optimum mix of both Executive and Non-Executive Directors including Independent
Directors and a Woman Director. The Board's composition and size is in compliance with the proyisions of the
Act and the Listing Requlations. The details of Directors of the Company and the remuneration drawn by them
are given in the Annual Return which is available on the website of the Company.

Mone of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors, as specified in Section
164({2) of the Act and Rule 14{1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,

A. APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONMEL

+  Retirement By Rotation:
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Aricles of Association of your
Company, Mr. Priyawart Jariwala (09148113) is due to refire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

A brief resume of the Director being reappeointed as required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing
Requlations forms a part of the Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

« Executive Directors
Mr. Priyawart Jariwala {(DIN: 09148113} was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a
period of 3 years wef 22" May 2021. His appointment was approved by the shareholders in the 30%
Annual General Meeting held on 29% September, 2021.

MNone of the Directors of the Company are disqualified for being appointed as Directors, as specified in
section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(1} of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014
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« MNon-Executive Directors
Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty (DIN: 09175798} was appointed as the Non-executive Director of the
Company w.ef 22 May, 2021 His appointment was approved by the shareholders in the 30% Annual
General Meeting held on 29" September, 2021

« Independent director
At the 27" AGM of the Company, Mr. Gaurav Somani (DIN: 06368949) and Mr. Amar Chand Baid (DIN:

07741980} were re-appointed as Independent Directors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years
w.ef 1st April, 2019 to hold office till 31st March, 2024 and Mr. Niraj Sinha (DIN: 06979287) has been
inducted as the new Independent Director to hold office till 24™ April, 2026.

. Statement On Declaration Given By Independent Directors Under Sub- Section (6] Of Section 149:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed both under the Act and Regulation 25 of the SEBI
{Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

«  Women Director
Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha (DIN: 07141131) continues as the Woman Director on the Company's
Board in conformity with the requirements of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (herginafier referred to
as SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015).

+  Whole time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):
Due to pre-occupation, Mr. Upmanyu Pathak has resigned from the post of Director and Managing Director
from the Board of Directors of the Company w.e f 22.05.2021. The Board of the Directors of the Company,
on the basis of the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee {N & RC’) appointed Mr.
Priyawart Jariwala as Managing Director, liable to retire by rotation, with effect from 22 May, 2021 and the
said appointment was approved by the shareholders in the 30" annual general meeting of the Company.
The present KMP of the Company are as follows:

SLNo. ~~~ Name | ~ Designation
1. Mr. Priyawart Jariwala | Managing Director
2 Mr. Prem Chand Khator | Chief Financial Officer
3

| Mr. Sunil Kumar Varma | Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

|
l

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors have framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to appointment,
remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and senior Management Personnel of the Company. The same has been available at our website
at www.ntcind.com.

C. BOARD EVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board commitiees and
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as
prescribed under Listing Regulations. The performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking inputs
from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness
of board processes, information and functioning, eic.

D. During the year under review, 1 {one) meeting of independent Directors held on 30.03.2022 where diractors
evaluated the performance of non-independent directors, performance of the board as a whole and
performance of the Chairman, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive
directors. The same was discussed in the board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent
Directors, at which the performance of the Board, its commitiees and individual directors was also
discussed.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the evaluation process and results thereof.

E. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME:

In compliance with Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors are familiarized
with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities therein, nature of the industry in which the Company
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operates, business model of the Company, etc. The familiarization programme imparted to the Independent
Directors during the year with details required as per Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations is available on
the  Company's website atthe link:  https:/f'www ntcind. com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-
FAMILARISATION-PROGRAMME pdf.

Committees

« Audit Committee

+« MNomination and Remuneration Committee

+« Share Transfer cum Stakeholders Relationship Committee
« Corporate Social Responsibility Committes

The details of all the above commitiees along with composition, terms of reference, number and dates of meeting
held, attendance at meetings are provided in the report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual
Report. There has been no instance where the Board has not accepted the recommendations of the Audit
Committee.

Auditors and Explanation to Auditor's Remarks

Statutory Audit

M/s. B. Rampuria & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 325211E), the Statutory Auditor of your
Company have conducted the Statutory audit of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. The Independent
Auditors Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 forms a part of this Annual Report.

The Company is pleased to inform that there is no qualification / reservation / adverse remark made by the
Statutory Auditors in their report.

Mo frauds were reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act

Statutory Auditors
M/s VKR & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No 320323E), have tendered their resignation
as the statutory auditors of the Company w.e f 3@ November, 2021

Furthar, M/s. R. Rampuria & Co_, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 325211E) of Martin Burn House,
1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 3™ Floor, Suit no. 318A, Kolkata — 700001, who have submitted their written consent to
the effect that their appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company, if made, will be as per the requirements
as laid down under Section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and that they are not disqualified for appointment, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company w.ef 3@ November, 2021 to fill the casual vacancy caused by Mis VKR & Associates. Their
appointment was subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company which was obtained on 1% February,
2022,

The tenure of M/s R. Rampuria & Co. shall expire at the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company and in
this regard, M/s R. Rampuria & Co., Chartered Accountants have submitied their writien consent fo the effect that
their appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company, if made, will be as per the requirements as laid down
under Section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and that they are not disqualified for appointment.

M/s R. Rampuria & Co., Chartered Accountants, has subjected themselves to peer review process of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAL

Further M/s R. Rampuria & Co., Chartered Accountants will hold office of the Statutory Auditors for a period of &
years beginning from the conclusion of 31% Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 36 Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

The Board propose aforesaid appointment for approval of shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting.

Secretarial Auditors

The Board has appointed Miss Prachi Todi, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the
financial year 2021-22. The Company had provided all assistance and facilities to the Secretarial Auditor for
conducting their audit and the report of the Secretarial Auditor along with the Compliance Report for the financial
year 2021-22 iz annexed herewith marked as annexure “A" to this Report.

Further, the Company has filed the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the year ended 31% March, 2022
issued by the secretarial auditor with BSE Limited on 30 May, 2022.
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Further, pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 244 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015, NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited is a material subsidiary of the Company in terms of
Regulation 16{1)(c) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
Secretarial Audit Report submitted by the Secretarial Auditor of NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited has been
given in annexure “B" which is annexed hereto and forms part of Directors’ Report.

Explanation to the Observation raised in the Secretarial Audit Report
The Secretarial Audit Report contains the following observations:

Observation:
a) A suit had been filed by shareholders of the Company in Sealdah Civil & Criminal Court against
Resolution passed in pursuance of Section 180(1) {(a) and 180(1) (b} of the Act and the matter is
subjudice.

Boards’ Reply:
a) On 05.01.2015 some minority shareholders have filed a suit against the Company in the court of Learned
Fourth Civil Judge {Junior Division) at Sealdah, West Bengal. The Company has filed its objection and
reply, and the matter is still subjudice in the court.

Internal Auditors

Pursuant to Section 135(1) of the Act, M/s Garg Narender & Co., Chartered Accountants had been appointed as
the Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company.
The Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee of the Board and the report of Internal Audit is also placed at
the Meetings of the Audit Committee for review.

Mo frauds were reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act.

Annual Return

In accordance with Section 92 (3) read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules
2014 {as amended) a copy of the Annual Return of the Company is hosted on its website and can be accessed

at hitps:/Awww _nicind.com/others/.

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors

During the financial year 2021-22, 11 (Eleven) Board Meetings were held, details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report. Details relating to dates of Board Meeting indicating the number of meetings
attended by each Director are also given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors” Responsibility Statement

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your
Directors make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

{a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

{b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and the statement of profit and loss of the company for that period;

{c} the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safequarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

{d}) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

{e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with the purpose
for which the loan or guarantze or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient are provided in the notes to
standalone financial statement.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year with Related
Parties as defined under the Companies Act 2013 and Listing Regulations were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm's length basis.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties
which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on related party transactions,
i.e., there were no fransactions exceeding ten percent of the annual turnover as per the last audited financial
statements, entered into during the year. Accordingly, the disclosure required under section 134(3)(h) of the Act
read with Rule 8{2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to your Company

Further, there are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other Designated Persons which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. The details of related party transactions are disclosed and set out in Note 35 to
the Standalone Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report.

Your Company has framed a Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party
transactions as approved by the Board The same can be accessible on the Company's website at
https://www ntcind com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-POLICY-ON-RELATED-PARTY-TRANSACTIONS-
2022 pdf.

Management Discussion and Analysis

& separate report on Management Discussion and Analysis containing a detailed analysis of the Company’s
performance as per Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations is annexed hereto.

Corporate Governance

A separate report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, as
required by Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulation for its due compliance is annexed hereto, forming part of
this Annual Report.

A certificate of the CEOQ and CFO of the Company in terms of Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations, infer alia,
confirming the correctness of the financial statement, adequacy of the internal control measures and reporting of
the matters to the Audit Committee is also annexed.

Material Changes and Commitments Affecting the Financial Position of the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and
the date of the report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and QOutgo

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, forsign exchange earnings and outgo,
as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014, are provided in annexure “C" to this Report.

Particulars of Employees

Details pursuant to section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule & of the Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 form part of this Report and are annexed herewith as
annexure “D".

Mone of the employees of the Company is in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under Rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Corporate Social Responsibility

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022| NTC INDUSTRIES LTD PAGE NO : 16



Pursuant to the reguirement under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder a Report
on CSR activities and initiatives taken during the year in the prescribed format is given in Annexure “E°, which is
annexed hereto’ and forms part of the Directors’ Report. The policy is available on the website of the Company at
the weblink: https:/fwww. ntcind.comfwp-content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-CSR-POLICY-2022 pdf.

Risk Management Policy

Your Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management framework which consist of Plan & Paolicies
pursuant to requirement of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with provisions of the Listing
Regulations.

In this ever-changing economic environment, your company is exposed to various risks such as market risk,
financial risk, liguidity risk, principally interest rate risk, credit risk and risks associated with the economy,
regulations, competition among others. The aforesaid Risk Management framework helps in identifying,
assessing, monitoring and mitigation of various risks to key business objectives. The Audit Committee of the
company oversee and evaluate overall risk management framework which is periodically reviewed by the Board
of Directors to ensure that the executive management controls the risk as per decided policy.

The risk management issues are discussed in detail in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and
complexity of operations. These systems are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal Auditor
and cover all offices, factories and key business areas. Significant audit observations and follow up actions
thereon are reporied to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including
those relating to strengthening of the Company’s risk management policies and systams.

Policy On Prevention of Insider Trading

Your Company has adopted a "Code of Practice & Procedure for Fair Disclosure® as envisaged under SEBI
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 with a view to Regulate trading in equity shares of the
Company by the Directors and Designated Employees of the Company. The said Code is available on the
website of the Company at the link: hitps/iwww ntcind comiwp-content/uploadsf2022/08/NTC-CODE-OF-
PRACTICES-AND-PROCEDURES-FOR-FAIR-DISCLOSURE-OF-UNPUBLISHED-PRICE-SENSITIVE-
INFORMATION . pdf

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated and published a Whistle Blower Policy to provide Vigil Mechanism for employees
including directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are'in line with the
provisions of the Section 177(9) of the Act and the Listing Regulations with stock exchanges and it can be
accessed at the website. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower
Policy also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and is
alzo available at the Company's website at the link hitps:/fwnaw ntcind comfwp-
content/uploads/2019/059/Vigilance-Mechanism-or-Whistle-Blower-Policy _ntc pdf

Human Resources

Your Company believes in best HR practices by providing its employees a world class working environment,
giving them equal opportunities to rise and grow. We continue to implement the best of HR policies so as to
ensure that talent retention is ensured at all levels. Employee relations continued to be cordial and harmonious at
all levels and in all divisions of the Company during the year.

Health, Safety and Environmental Protection

Your Company has complied with all the laws applicable to the Company. The Company has been complying
with relevant laws and has been taking all necessary measures to protect the environment and maximize worker
protection and safety.

Depaosits

The Company has not invited or accepted deposits from the public covered under Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,
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Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by The Regulators or Courts or Tribunal

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts
or Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. Further,
during the year under review, no applications were made, or no proceedings were pending as at the end of the
year under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Details of difference between amount of valuation done at time of one-time settlement and valuation
done while taking loan from Banks/Fl (s) along with reasons

The Company has not made any one-time settlement with the Banks.

Disclosures Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act. 2013

An Internal Complaints Committee has been constituted under the Anti Sexual Harassment Policy approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company, which provides a forum to all female personnel to lodge complaints (if
any) therewith for redressal.

Your directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation to the shareholders, bankers,
business associates, retailers, suppliers, customers, government and other regulatory agencies for their
continued support and faith in the Company. Your Board is grateful to the Independent Directors for their
valuable contributions. All of them despite other business exigencies have shared their rich experience
and knowledge with the management to take your Company forward. Your Directors are also wish io
place on record their appreciation for the whole-hearted co-operation, dedication, commitment and
contribution made by all the employees and look forward to their continued support. Inspired by this
vision, driven by values and powered by internal vitality, your Directors look forward to the future with
confidence and stand committed to creating an even brighter future for all stakeholders.

For & on behalf of the Board
Priyawart Jariwala Niraj Sinha
Managing Director Director

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2022
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Annexure “A”

Prachr Todi

Company Secretaries
33C, Satsh Mukherjee Road,
Near Gouriya Math,
Kolkata-700026
Mobile No: 9830072442
Email: csprachi92@gmail.com; info.prachi92@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(FORM NO. MR-3)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°T MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members
NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

149, B.T. Road Kamarhati
Kolkata — 700053

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Mis NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted on test check basis, in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, and relying on the representations made by
the Company and its Officers, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the financial year
ended 31% March, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and aiso that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.

| further report that compliance with applicable laws is the responsibility of the Company and my report
constitutes an independent opinion. Further, my report is neither an assurance for future viability of the
Company nor a confirmation of efficient management by the Company.

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, according to the provisions of the following laws
and as shown to me, during my audit:

{i)y The Companias Act, 2013 (*the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

{ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA') and the rules made thersunder;

(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv] The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Requlations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

C: The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agenis)
Regulations, 1993 and other applicable regulations/guidelines/circulars as may be issued by SEE! from
time to time to the extent applicable;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable regulations/ guidelines/ circulars as may be issued by SEBI fiom
time to time to the extent applicable;
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e The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018;

| further report that, during the year under review, there were no actions/events in pursuance of:

a. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder fo the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008.

oo o

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
documents and recerds in pursuance thereof and on the basis of the Management representation, | have also
examined the secretarial compliances of the Company for the financial year ended 312 March 2022, of the
following laws specifically applicable to the Company:

a. Tobacco Beard Act, 1975,
. Tobacce Cess Act, 1975;
c. Cigarettes and Other Tobacco Products (Prohibition of Advertisement and Regulation of Trade and
Commerce, Production, Supply and Distribution) Act, 2003 (COPTA).

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

{iy  Secretarial Standards issued and mandated by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
{i)  The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited;
{iliy ~ The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited.

During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by the managament and
subject to clarifications given to me, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent mentioned hereunder:

i A suit had been filed by shareholders of the Company in Sealdah Civil & Criminal Court against
Resolution passed in pursuance of Section 180(1) (a) and 180(1) (b) of the Act and the matier is
subjudice.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Mon-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. During the year under review, Mr. Upmanyu Pathak (DIN:
06563100) had ceased to act as the Managing Director of the Company w.ef 22" May, 2021, Further, Mr.
Prigyawart Jariwala (DIMN: 09148113) was appointed as an Additional Director in the Executive Category
{(Managing Director) of the Company for a period of three (3) years we f 22 May, 2021, and Mr. Tapan Kumar
Chakraborty (DIN: 09175798) was appointed as an Additional Director in the Non-Executive Category w.e i
22™ May, 2021. Further, Mr. Niraj Sinha (DIN: 06979287} was also appointed as an Additional Director in the
MNon-Executive Independent Category w.e.f. 25™ April, 2021. Apart from this, there were no other changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Commitiee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company had obtained approval of shareholders by way of
Ordinary Resolution passed at its Annual General Meeting held on 29" September, 2021, for the following
purposes: -

i Appointment of Mr. Priyawart Jariwala (DIN: 09148113) as Director in the Executive Category;

ii. Appointment of Mr. Priyawart Jariwala (DIN: 09148113} as Managing Director of the Company, to hold
office for a period of three (3) years w.ef 22 May, 2021;

iil. Appointment of Mr. Niraj Sinha (DIN: 06979287) as Director in the Non-Executive Independent
Category, to hold office for a period of five (5) years w.e.f. 25 April, 2021;
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iv. Appointment of Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty (DIN: 09175798) as Director in the MNon-Executive
Category;

| further report that:

i The audit of compliances pursuant to the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the
Calcutta Stock Exchange has been done on test check basis.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A" and forms an integral
part of this Report.

Prachi Todi

Practicing Company Secretary

M. No.: 53022 Date: 30 May, 2022
C.P. No.: 22964 Place: Kolkata

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1445/2021
UDIN: A053022D000430399
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Prachr Todi

Company Secretaries
33C, Satsh Mukherjee Road,
Near Gouriya Math,
Kolkata-700026
Mobile No: 9830072442
Email: csprachi92@gmail.com; info.prachi92@gmail.com

"ANMEXURE — A"
(TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022)

To

The Members

NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
149, B.T. Road Kamarhati
Kolkata — 700053

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit.

2. | have followed the Audit practices and processes as and where appropriate to obiain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facis are reflected in Secretarial Records. | believe that the processes and
practices that were followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is
the responsibilities of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Prachi Todi

Practicing Company Secretary

M. No.: 53022 Date: 30t May, 2022
C.P. No.: 22964 Place: Kolkata

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1445/2021
UDIN: A053022D000430399

Nore: The COVID-19 outbreak has been declared as a global pandemic by the Word Health Organization. Due o the ongoing
lockdowns and in order fo maintain social distancing norms. the documents far conducting the audit were obtained through
electronic mode and verified with requirements. It is further stated that due fo the ongoing pandemic, few compiiances. and
intimations made to Stock Exchanges under relevant SEBI Reguiations and compliances made as per the Companies Act,
2013 read with relevant rules were done within fhe extended penod and relaxalions gramted by respecilive regulatorny
authorities.
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Annexure “B”

Prachr Todi

Company Secretaries
33C, Satsh Mukherjee Road,
Near Gouriya Math,
Kolkata-700026
Mobile No: 9830072442
Email: csprachi92@gmail.com; info.prachi92@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(FORM NO. MR-3)
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°T MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
149, B.T. Road Kamarhati,
Kolkata- 700053

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by MIS NTCIL REAL ESTATE PRIVATE LIMITED (hersinafter called “the
Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted on test check basis, in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its Officers, Agents and
Authorized Representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby repori that in my opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 complied with the
statutory provisions and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

| have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2022 according to the provisions of the following laws and
as shown to me, during my audit:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), amendments and the rules made thereunder;
i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

| further report that during the year under review, there were no actions/events in pursuance of Foreign
Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder were not applicable fo the
Company.

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
documents and records in pursuance thereof and on the basis of the Management Representation, | further
report that, the Company has compliad with the following laws specifically applicable to the Company:

(a) The Transfer of Property Act, 1882 as applicable;

(b) Building and Other Construction Workers' (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of
Services) Act, 1996;

(c) Indian Contract Act, 1672;

(d) Indian Registration Act, 1908;

(e) The provisions relating to material subsidiary as specified in the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable
regulations/ guidelines/ circulars as may be issued by SEBI from time to time to the extent applicable.

| have also examined compliance with Secretarial Standards issued and mandated by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.
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During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by the management and
subject to_clarifications given to me, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions of the Act. During
the year under review, Mr. Privawart Jariwala was appointed as an Additional Director in the Non-Executive
Category with effect from 25 April, 2021.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the
Board of Directors.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company had obtained approval of shareholders by way of
Ordinary Resolution passed at its Annual General Meeting held on 30" October, 2021 for change in designation
of Mr. Priyawart Jariwala from Additional Director in the Non-Executive Category to a Director.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A" and forms an integral
part of this Report.

Prachi Todi

Practicing Company Secretary

M. No.: 53022 Date: 30/05/2022
C.P.No.: 22964 Place: Kolkata

Peer Review Certificate No.: 14452021
UDIN: A053022D000433776
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Prachr Todr

Company Secretaries
33C, Satsh Mukherjee Road,
Near Gouriya Math,
Kolkata-700026
Mobile No: 9830072442
Email: csprachi92@gmail.com; info.prachi92@gmail.com

"ANMEXURE — A"
(TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022)

To

The Members,

NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
149, B.T. Road Kamarhati,
Kolkata- 700058

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the audit.

2. | have followed the Audit practices and processes as and where appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial Records. | believe that the processes and practices that
were followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

h. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is
the responsibilities of the management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Prachi Todi

Practicing Company Secretary

M. No.: 53022 Date: 30/05/2022
C.P. No.: 22964 Place: Kolkata

Peer Review Certificate No.: 14452021
UDIN: A053022D000433776
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Annexure “C"

Disclosure of Particulars under section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 8(3) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March,

2022:
A. Conservation of energy
i) Steps taken or impact on energy 1. Continuous up gradation in machineries to enhance
conservation productivity so that it will consume less energy and

POWET.
2. Installation of Power Capacitor Bank for energy
conservation.

i) | Steps taken for utilizing alternate The Company is always endeavoring to maintain the
sources of energy optimum combination of energies and always looking for the
alternate sources.
iii) | Capital investment on energy NIL

conservation equipment

EB. Technology absorption

(i} | efforts made towards technology
: NIL
absorption
(i} | benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product NIL

development or import substitution

(ii} | Details in case of imported technology
{imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year}-

{a) the details of technology imported MIL
(b} the year of import; NIL
{c) whether the technology been fully
NIL
_absorbed .
{d) if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place, and MIL

the reasons thereof
{iv) | expenditure incurred on Research and | During the year under review, the Company has not incurred
Development any specific and material capitalrecurring expenditure on
research and development. Research and Development is
carried out in-house using the existing manufacturing setup.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:
The Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year & the Foreign Exchange outgo in

terms of actual outflows:

(T in Lacs)
Total Foreign Exchange earned and used 2021-22 2020-21
Foreign Exchange earnad 1162.16 1211.42
Foreign Exchange used 62.36 41516

For & on behalf of the Board
Place: Kolkata
Date: 30% May, 2022

Priyawart Jariwala Niraj Sinha
Managing Director Director
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Annexure-“D"

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES

ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 3(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,

1. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary during the financial year 2021-22, ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median

remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

Mame Remuneration of Ratio of the % increase in
directors/KMPs for remuneration of Remuneration in the
the financial year each director to financial year 2021-22
2021-22 the median
(%) remuneration of
the employees
Mr. Upmanyu Pathak,
Managing Director (upto 22 05 2021) 107,313 00 044 (8728}
Mr. Privawart Jariwala,
Managing Director (w & f 22 05.2021) £ 28170 2.9 -
Mr. Prem Chand Khator,
Chiaf Financial Officer 11.06,034.00 4.47 510
Mr. Sunil Kumar Varma,
Company Secretary Cum Compliance 540 112.00 218 13.32
| Officer B | A Y

Percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the
financial year:

Median Remuneration during the year was T 24083092 The
median remuneration was decreased by (0.54)%.

Number of permanent employees on
the rolls of company:

68*

E:m';ztm" av;}r'; Ethe inéf;:g:“hiﬁ The Profit before Tax for the financial year ended March 31, 2022
- g decreased by (3572%) whereas the decrease in  median

remuneration and company [ o (0.54)%

performance: ’ :

Comparison of the remuneration of the
Company:

key managerial personnel against the performance of the

Remuneration PBT =
Name [ in lacs) [ in lacs) As a % of PBT
- Mr. Upmanyu Pathak 1,08 549.50 0.20
Mr. Priyawart Jariwala 7.39 54950 135
Mr. Prem Chand Khator 11.06 249.50 2.01
Mr. Sunil Kumar Varma 540 54350 0.98
Variations in the market capitalization Particulars 2020-21 2021-22
of the Company, price earnings ratio [Ta-ros
as at the closing date of the current Capitalization (3) 668,266,800.00 1,101,834,000.00
financial year and previous financial -
year: PE Ratio 21.52 2480

Percentage increase over decrease in
the market quotations of the shares of
the Company in comparison to the
rate at which the Company came out
with the last public offer:

The Company has not made any public offer in the recent past and
accordingly, comparison of Public Offer Price and the current market
price of the Company’s shares will not be relevant.
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Average percentile increase already
made in the salaries of employees
other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial
remuneration:

a) Average increase/(Decrease) in remuneration of employees other
than the Managerial Personnel - (4.86)%.

by Average increase/{Decrease) in remuneration of Managerial
Personnel -; 4.89%

The key parameters for any variable
component of remuneration availed
by the directors:

The ratio of the remuneration of the
highest paid director to that of the
employees who are not directors but
receive remuneration in excess of the
highest paid director during the year:

The key parameters for the wvariable component of remuneration
availed by the directors are considered by the Board of Directors
based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

Mot Applicable

Affirmation that the remuneration is
as per the remuneration policy of the
Company:

The remuneration is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees of
the Company, formulated pursuant to the provisions of section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

* The calculation is made considening only those permanent employees associated with the Company at the end of
financial year 2020-21 & 2021-22 respectively.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30% May, 2022

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director
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Annexure-“E"

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

1. A Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company has framed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 & Schedules
thereof. The Policy comprises of the Composition of the Committee together with their responsibilities. It enumerates
the list of activities for channelizing the amount of expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility. CSR
Committee has proposed to contribute 2% of Company’s average net profits made during the three immediately
preceding financial years in 5ri 5.L. Dugar Charitable Trust, which has an established track record of three years in
undertaking educational activities. The Trust owns “The Aryan School” and is eligible to channelize the entailed
expenditure for CSR activities. These goals contribute to and are covered by activities listed in the Schedule VIl of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Policy of the Company as approved by the Board of Directors is available on the Company’s website at the
link: https://www_ntcind com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08 NTC-CSR-POLICY-2022 pdf

2. Composition of CSR Committee is as under:

5l. No. | Name of Director Designation / Number of meetings | Number of meetings of
Nature of of CSR Committee CSR Committee
Directorship held during the year |attended during the year
1 Miraj Sinha Chairman 2 2
2 Gaurav Somani Member P 2
3 |Priyawart Jariwala Member 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and C5R projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company: hitps://wwwntcind com/wp-

content/uploads/2022/08/ NTC-CSR-POLICY-2022 pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of C5SR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not
applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate

Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any : Not
applicable

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(3) : ¥ 3,95 92 966.00

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) :¥7 91,859 32

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of  : NIL
the previous financial years.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (Ta+7h-Tc) :T7.91,859.32

8. (a) CS5R amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in )
Total Amount Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
?pent.fcrthe Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
Flnar?[ni:rlia;]‘fear. section 135(6). 135(5).
& ¢ _ Name of the A ¢ Date of
mount. ate of transfer. it mount. LR
8,00.000 Mot applicable
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(b) Details of CS5H amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

M | (2 (3) [ (4) (9) (6) (7 (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl No.|Name | Item |LocallLocation of | Project| Amount |Amount| Amount Mode of Mode of
of the |from the | area | the project [durationfallocated|spent in| transferred [mplementation| Implementation -
Project| listof |(Yes/ for the the | to Unspent - Direct Through
activities| No) project | current CSR (Yes/No) Implementing
in (in¥} ([financiall Account for Agency
Schedule StatelDistrict Year (in| the project Name CSR
Ull;{’ tthE 2 ;‘5 ey Registration
C ection
135(6) (in %) number

Mot Applicable

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (3) (6) (7) (8)
51.| Name of the |Iltem from the | Local | Location of Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
No. Project list of area the project |spent for the | implementation - Through implementing
activities in | (Yes/ preject (in¥) | Direct (Yes/No) agency
schedule VIl | No) |gtate| District Name CSR
to the Act registration
number
1. Promotion of [Promoting Yes | WestBengal | 8,00,000/- Mo Sri. 5L |CSRO0012451
Education and |[Education Dugar
Health care Charitable
service Trust
{d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - il
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - Mot Applicable
{f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6b+8c+8d+8e) ¥ 6,00,0004-
{g) Excess amount for set off, if any:
Sl No. Particular Amount
(in %)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 7:91,859.32
{ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 5.00,000.00
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-{i)] 8,140.68
{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, -
if any
{v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iii}-{iv)] 8,140.68

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

5I. No. | Preceding
Financial

Year.

Amount transferred
to Unspent CSR
Account under

section 135 (6) (in T)

Amount spent in Amount transferred to any fund Amount
the reporting specified under Schedule Vil as per | remaining
Financial Year (in section 135(6}, if any. to be spent
%) Name of | Amount Date of in
the Fund (in %) transfer. | Succeeding
financial
years. (in )

Mot Applicable
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (3) (6) (1) (8) (3)
Sl. No.| ProjectliD. Name of the Financial Project Total |Amount spent on Cumulative Status of
Project. Year in duration. | amount | the project in the | amount spent at |the project
which the allocated reporting the end of -
project was for the |Financial Year (in reporting Completed|
commenced. project (in 7 Financial Year. |/Ongoing.
%) (in )

Mot Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset wise details): Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5): Not Applicable

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30 May, 2022

For & on behalf of the Board

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director
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Form - ADC1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint

ventures
Part “A": Subsidiaries (¥ in hundreds)
Sl No. 1 2 3 4
N fth bsidi MNTCIL Infrastructure MTCIL Real NTCIL Realty MTCIL Siliguri
e O e SUgpmary Pyi. Ltd. Estate Pvt. Ltd. Pyt Ltd. Estate Pvt. Ltd.
Reporting period for the
sistFinlay r onderued, i 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22

different from the holding
company'’s reporting period
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial INR INR INR INR
year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries

Share capital 1,000 1.000 1,000 1,000
Reserves & surplus 566,354 1.781.414 -998 -1760
Total assets 710,767 2,219,262 298 3,079
Total Liabilities 710,767 2,219,262 298 3,079
Investments - - -

Turnover 287133 600,417 - -
Profit before taxation y A g 186,792 | 422473 | 120, ) __23B_|
Provision for taxation N | . Ei_ﬂ-l[]ﬂ- H}U:.[W i - -
Profit after taxation 134,792 322,473 -112 -238
Proposed Dividend - - - -
% of shareholding 100% | 100% 100% 100%
Notes:

1. MNames of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations —-NTCIL Realty Pvi Ltd. and NTCIL
Siliguri Estate Pvt. Ltd. are yet to commence operations.
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- None
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures
Mame of Associates/Joint Ventures Nil Nil Mil Nil
Latest audited Balance Sheet Date
Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end
Mo.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
Extend of Holding % ' ' N OT

Description of how there is significant influence . . APP LICAB LE

Reason why the associate/joint wenture is
netconsolidated

Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Conscolidation

i. Mot Considered in Consolidation

For and on behalf of the Board

Priyawart Jariwala Niraj Sinha

Managing Director Director

Sunil Kumar Varma Prem Chand Khator
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

As part of the Director's Report or as an addition thereto, a Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming
part of the Annual Report to the Sharsholders includes discussion on the following matters within the limits set by
the company’'s Competitive position:

SOCIO ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT AND INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

The year 2021-22 started off with COVID 2nd wave impacting business in the first two months. Restricted mobility
and resfrictions led to significant drop in consumption. As the 2nd wave receded, industry volumes picked up and
improved quarter-on-gquarter. COVID 3rd wave during the end of third and beginning of fourth quarters had minimal
impact on volume recovery.

Industry volumes in 2021-22 were 3% lower than pre-pandemic level though 14% higher than 2020-21. This
recovery was led by a combination of consumer trends broadly centered around affordable (convenient price point)
aspiration, variety in the form of indigenous flavors and milder smoker experience.

Though the market conditions were not favorable and the same was challenging for the company as the domestic
demand continued to be sluggish in throughout the year due to trade disruption and geo-political uncertainties, yet
your company managed to achieve better results across the different markets especially international.

After the Union Budget 2020, the government has skipped any taxation changes on Cigarettes which is a welcome
step, yet the taxes on tobacco and tobacco products are very high and discriminative. Due to the above high,
volatile and discriminatory taxation policy, all the market players are facing margin and volume problems.

Tobacco Institute of India (TIl), the association that lobbies for cigarette companies, has long been vocal about high
tax structure which it said has created the market for smuggled foreign cigarette impacting the legal cigarette
manufacturers. On the other hand, relatively lower taxed tobacco products like bidi, khaini, chewing tobacco,
gutkha and smuggled cigarettes constitute for about 89% of total tobacco consumption in India, according to TIL

The discriminatory taxation policy, harsh pictorial warning almost covering both front and back side of packets and
availability of cheaper non duty paid cigarettes, impacting your company's performance. Above all there is also a
huge competition with the other manufacturers.

However, in the above said adverse scenarios, your company is dedicated to its customers and taking all the
available efforts to regain its lost place in the industry by improving its portfolio and technologies.

With implementation of GST and regularization of formal economy coupled with initiatives taken by the government
to improve infrastructure, agriculture and industry across all segments, significant consumer growth is expected in
the times to come.

STRENGTHS & OPPORTUNITIES

India is the world's 2nd largest producer of tobacco with an estimated annual production of 800 million kgs and the
3rd largest producer of Flue-Cured Virginia (FCV) tobacco — a variety used in Cigarettes, with an annual production
of around 300 million kgs. India is amongst the top tobacco exporters in the world reflecting the tremendous success
that Indian tobacco companies achieved. The growth in exports has been remarkable in the recent years. The global
leaf tobacco trade is valued at USS 12 billion per annum; India’s share of this trade is just around 7% currently. India
is poised to increase its share of leaf tobacco trade, particularly as India’s tobacco production share in the world is
more than 12%.

Tobacco & Tobacco Products are a large contributor to the Mational exchequer by way of Central Excise and Goods
& Service Tax. Cigarettes which bear the brunt of taxation in India are the major revenue contributor from the
Tobacco sector. Despite just 11% share of tobacco consumption, legal cigarettes contribute 85% of tax revenue.

Tobacco provides direct and indirect employment to more than 45.7 million people, around 70% of whom are in the

agricultural sector. Tobacco is a highly remunerative crop providing economicisocial benefits to farmers in the
tobacco growing regions.
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This shows that India has significant opportunity for cigarette industry to extend and consolidate its position in
intentional market due to some recent trend like withdrawal/reduction of agricultural subsidy and escalating costing
in the traditional cigarette exporting countries.

It is your Company's continuous endeavor to maintain the taste and preferences of its customers while upgrading
and developing new brands. Your company will launch new brands in the 64 mm, 69 mm and 84 mm segments in
the near-term in new designs across various placas in India.

THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

Extreme Regulation
Despite India being the 2nd largest tobacco producer and a major exporter, tobacco control measures in India have
always been equally or more stringent than in many developed countries.

Taxation

As a percentage of per capita GDP, Cigarette taxes (Excise Duty & Goods & Service Tax) in India, of the most
popular price category, are amongst the highest in the world. Consequently, cigarette prices in India, relative to per
capita GDP, are also amongst the highest in the world.

Pictorial/Graphic Warning

The Union Ministry of Health & Family Welfare has mandated an increase in the size of pictorial warnings from the
current 40% on front of the packs to 85% on both sides with effect from 1st April 2016. Such an extreme position on
warnings overlooking the huge livelihood dependency and enormous socio-economic benefits of Tobacco in India.

lllegal Cigarette Trade
Extremely high tax rates and constantly increasing tax rates on Cigareties provide a profitable opportunity for tax
evasion by illegal trade in both international smuggled and domestic tax evaded cigareties

Moreover, in the current market situation there is a stiff competition from big players with regard to marketing of new
brands.

SEGMENT WISE / PRODUCT WISE PERFORMAMNCE

Your Company considers “Manufacturing of Cigarette and Smoking Mixture™ as the primary business segment
Therefore segment wise / product wise performance reporting is not applicable to your company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

NTC has a robust system of internal financial control, commensurate with the size and complexity of its business
operations. The system which comprised of policy, procedure and internal audit processes. It safeguarding its
agsets, ensuring transactions are in accordance with the policies, and are duly authorised to identify possible risk
areas and to prevent possibilities of frauds or other irregularities.

The Company has an external and independent firm of Internal Auditors that scrutinizes the financials and other
operations of the Company. Internal Auditors directly report to the Audit Committee. The Audit committes review the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system of the Company and keeps the Board of Directors informed of
its major observations from time to time. Based on the findings of Internal Auditors, process owners undertake
corrective actions in their respective areas. During the year and at the year-end, no reportable material weakness or
significant deficiency was observed in the design or operations. Your company is also 150 9001:2008 certified for its
internal audit function.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT

At NTC, we follow a culture that provides a platform for continuous learning and development to meet the
challenges posed by ever-changing market realities. Employees are your Company's most valuable assets and the
Management recognizes them as the prime machinery of the organization. They are always given the first priority
and are provided with all the basic requirements and safety measures for good health and well-being.’ The
Management, in order to create enduring value, has fostered a culture of feeling of being togetherness and
attachment amongst ntc employees through participative management practices, open interaction and. mutual
respect.

Your Company's human resource management systems and processes aim to enhance organizational capability
and vitality to seize emerging market opportunities. The strategy of the organization and its ongoing emphasis on
developing and nurturing distributed leadership has ensured that each of your Company's business is managed by a
team of competent, passionate and inspiring leaders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022| NTC INDUSTRIES LTD PAGE NO : 34



Your Company's belief in the mutuality of interests of key stakeholders binds all employees to a shared vision and
purpose. The Company continued to maintain healthy industrial relations and did not report any sort of strike or
lockout that would have impacted Company’s operations.

CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details of key financial ratios along with the reasons for significant changas

therein are given below:

S| For the year For the year Reasons for
HC; Particulars ended March ended March significant
) 31st, 2022 Mst, 2021 change (if any)
1. Debtors Turnover 472 551 -
P Inventory Turnover 4.04 4.29 -
. Due to decrease in profit due to
K Interest Coverage Ratio 2378 32.64 st b e mabaaReost
4 CUTTanT L atic 5 79 318 Decrease in trade payable due to
less procurement at year end
5 Debt Equity Ratio 0.03 0.04 -
6. | Operating Profit Margin (%) 19.02% 31.32% Quee increase ipow ol
7. | Net Profit Margin (%) 14.73% 22.34% Qe to IneESaaie T
MNote:

1. Above ratios are based on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

2. Significant change means a change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately preceding financial year.

Details of Change In Return On Net Worth As Compared To The Immediately Preceding Financial Year

S| For the year For the year Reasons for
HC; Particulars ended March ended March significant
) J1st, 2022 J1st, 2021 change (if any)
1. | Return on Net Worth 9.29% 16.44% Due to daskgsmti st duy
to increase in raw material cost
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the indusinal expectations are forward looking
staternents” within the meaning of applicable securities faw and regulations. Actual results could differ materially
from those expressed or implied, important factors that could make difference to the Company's operations include
raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company's principal markets, changes in the
government requlations, tax regimes, economic developments in India and other incidental factors.

For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Kolkata
Date: 30.05.2022
Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director
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REPORT ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance standards demonstrate inalienable rights vested with various stakeholders and strong
commitment to values, ethics and business conduct. At NTC Industries Limited (the Company’), Corporate
Governance is defined as a systematic process by which companies are directed and controlled keeping in mind the
long-term interests of all their stakeholders. Achievement of excellence in good Corporate Governance practices
requires continuous efforts and focus on its resources, strengths and strategies towards ensuring fairness and
transparency in all its dealings with its stakeholders including society at large. Corporate Governance has indeed
assumed greater significance as the world has moved towards closer integration and free trade.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company firmly believes that Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business
conduct. Your Company has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices and endeavors to
improve upon these aspects on an ongoing basis and adopts innovative approaches. The Board of Directors (‘the
Board’) of your Company is responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance in the
Company. It has been enduring in its philosophy to enhance stakeholders’ value and customers’ satisfaction by
consistently endeavoring to follow the best Corporate Governance practices. The Board plays a critical role in
overseging how the management serves the short and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.
This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and
independent Board. The Board updates its policies and guidalines from time to time to address the changing need of
the environment in which it operates and to effectively achieve the stated objective of the Company.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In terms of the Corporate Governance policy, all statutory and other significant and material information are placed
before the Board to enable it to discharge its responsibility of strategic supervision of the Company as trustees to
the shareholders. The Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs,
direction and performance of the Company and has been vested with the requisite powers, authorities and duties.

COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board of the Company is in conformity with the Code of Corporate Governance as per
Requlation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations").
The Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. As on 31st March, 2022,
your Company’'s Board has a strength of 6 (5ix) Directors comprising 1 (one) Executive, 3 (Three) Non Executive
Independent and 2 (Two) Mon-Executive Non-Independent. The Company has one-woman director in its Board and
as such the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’) and
Part A of Schedule Il of Listing Regulations read with regulation 17(7) of the said Regulations with regard to
information being placed before the Board. At the time of appointment, every Independent Director signs a
Declaration to confirm that they fulfil all the conditions for being an Independent Director as laid down under the law.
The Board believes that the current size is appropriate, based on the Company's prasent circumstances.

Compomtmn and Dlrectﬁrshlp{s] ICommittee Membershlp{s}IChairmanshlp[s} as on 31st March 2022

, . Managing . .
Mr. Privawart Jariwala Director Executive Director - - -
Mr. Gaurav Somani Diractor NGH_EKEEUIWE.& - - -

Independent Director
Mon-Executive &

Mr. Amar Chand Baid Director Independent Director - - 2

Mon-Executive &

Mr. Niraj Sinha Directar Independent Director - - -
Mr. Tapan Kumar Director Non-Executive : - 2
Chakraborty Director
Ms. Vembi Director Non-Executive ) ) .
Krishnamurthy Radha Director

*Excludes Directorships in private limited, foreign companies and government companies
**Only memberships/chairmanships of the Audit Commiftee and Stakeholder Relationship Commitiee in various
public limited companies have been considered here
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Notes:

1. Mone of the Directors hold Directorships in more than 20 companies including 10 public limited companies
and private companies which are either subsidiary or holding company of a public company pursuant to
Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. MNone of the Directors hold Membership and/or Chairmanship of any Committee exceeding 10 Companies
andler 5 Companies respectively as per Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations.

3. The Directorship/Committee membership is based on the Disclosures received from the Directors as on
31.03.2022.

4. All independent directors have confirmed their independence to the Company.

Mr. Priyawart Jariwala, retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks re-appointment at the ensuing 31% Annual
General Meeting (AGM}. A brief resume of the director retiring by rotation seeking re-appoiniment, along with the
nature of his expertise and the details of other directorships and the commitiee positions held by him and his
shareholding have been disclosed in the notes/Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice of the ensuing AGM.

No director has any inter se relations to other Director.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s business policy and strategy apart
from other businesses. The Board/Commitiee meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative date of Board and
Committee meetings is circulated to the directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedules and to
ensure meaningful paricipation in the meetings. The Company Secretary drafts the agenda for each meeting, along
with the agenda notes and explanatory statements, which are distributed well in advance to the directors, in
accordance with Para 1.3.7 of the Secretarial Standard- 1. Every Board member is free to suggest items for
inclusion on the agenda. The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the quarterly results and other
agendas.

During the financial year ended 31% March, 2022, Eleven (11) meetings of the Board were held, i.e., on 25/04/2021,
22/05/2021, 29/06/2021, 10/08/2021, 28M10/2021, 03/11/2021, 121172021, 1712/2022, 01/02/2022, 14/02/2022 &
30/03/2022. The maximum interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of four
months.

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting

Director MNo. of Board Meetings Attendance at last AGM
- (29" September, 2021)
Held during Attended
directorship
Mr. Upmanyu Pathak™ 2 2 Mo
Mr. Priyawart Jariwala™ 9 9 Yes
Mr. Gaurav Somani 1" 1" Yes
Mr. Amar Chand Baid 11 11 Mo
Mr. Niraj Sinha™" 10 10 Yes
Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty™** 9 9 MNo
Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha 11 11 Yes

*  Resigned w.e.f22.05.2021

**  appointed w.e f22.05.2021

*** appointed w.e f25.04 2021

***appointed w.e f 22052021

INFORMATION PLACED BEFORE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Part A of Schedule Il of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 read with regulation 17(7)
of the said regulations with regard to information being placed before the Board of Directors

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Schedule IV of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, a separate meeting of Independent Directors
was held on 30/03/2022. The Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a
whole and further assessed the quality, quantity and the timeliness of flow of information between the Management
and the Board. The Directors discussed the evaluation form for the Evaluation of Directors. They also reviewed the
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performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-
executive directors.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME

In terms of Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, the Company organizes familiarization programmes for its
Independent Directors to provide insights into the Company's operations. The Company periodically conducts
presentations/programs to familiarize the Independent Directors with its strategy, operations and functions inclusive
of important developments in various business divisions, and new initiatives undertaken by it. The details of
programmes for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company, including their duties and related
matters are available on the website of the Company at: hitps://www ntcind.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-
FAMILARISATION-PROGRAMME. pdf.

LIST OF CORE SKILL/EXPERTISE/ICOMPETENCIES

Pursuant to the provisions contained in the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company has identified
various skills, expertise and competencies that the Board possesses. The specific areas of focus or expertise that
the individual Directors of the Company possess have been provided below.

Area of Expertise
Director Industry | Technical SED?rd 2 ; mano:& Strategic | Sales & feadshi
Experience Skill siskbelriad CCIETnG Planning | Marketing eaneasp
Governance | Experience

Mr. Upmanyu - v " o P P ~
Pathak®
Mr._Pn',rawart - 7 P ~ v 7 >
Jariwala™
Mr.Gaqrav v v 7 P / I -
Somani
Mr. Amar
Chand Baid > % v " . ? v
Mr. Niraj

¥ v ¥ ¥ ¥
_“%iﬂtlg*** ,r v e
Mr. Tapan
Kumar ¥ v v = v ' W
Chakraborty ™"
Ms. Vembi
Krishnamurthy v v v v v - v
Fadha

*  Resigned w.e f22.05.2021
** appointed w.e f22.05.2021
*=* appointed w.e.f 25.04 2021
***appointed w.e f 22.05.2021

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constifuted to
deal with specific areas/activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board Committees are
set up under the formal approval of the Board, to carry out clearly defined roles. The Board supervises the execution
of its responsibilities by the Commitiee and is responsible for their action. The Minutes of the meetings of all the
Committees are placed before the Board for review.

The Board had established the following Committees.

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company acts as a link between the Managament, the Statutory and Internal Auditors
and the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee, infer alia, provides reassurance to the Board on the existence of
an effective internal control environment that ensures:

efficiency and effectiveness of operations;

safequarding of assets and adequacy of provisions for all liabilities;

reliability of financial and other management information and adequacy of disclosures;
compliance with all relevant statutes.
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COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The constitution of the Committee meets the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Requlation 18 of the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee comprises of:

Sl. No. | Name Category - Designation
Mr. Gaurav Somani Non-Executive and Independent Chairman
Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Non-Executive Member
Fadha
Mr. Amar Chand Baid MNon-Executive and Independent Member

All the members of the Committee are financially literate and the Chairman of the Committee has accounting and
financial management expertise. The Chief Financial Officer attends the meeting of the Audit Committee as an
invitee and the Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as defined under the relevant provisions of Section 177 of the
Act and as specified in Part C of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee is empowered,
pursuant to its terms of reference, infer alia, to:

investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it requires from any
employee,

obtain legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise, when considered necessary;

have full access to information contained in the records of the Company.

The role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

Wi

Wi
Wi,

xi.
xii.

il

Xiv.
XV,
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Oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommending the appointment/re-appointment and removal of statutory auditors, internal auditors and
fixation of their remuneration;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services renderad by them;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

s Matters required to be included in the Directors” Responsibility Statement, which is to be included in
the Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013,

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment by the management.
Cualifications in the draft audit report.

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit.

Compliance with listing and legal requirements concerning financial statements.

s Disclosure of any related party fransactions.

Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
{public izssue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc ), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations
to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process
Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
confrol systems.

Reviewing the adeguacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit,

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant finding and follow-up thereon;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity of failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;
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xvi. Discussion with the statutory auditors, before the audit commences on the nature and scope of audit, as
well as post-audit discussions, to ascertain any areas of concern and review the comments contained in

their draft report;
xvii. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividend) and creditors;
xviil. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
xix.  Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time Finance Diraector or any other person heading the

finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualification, experience and background,
etc. Of the candidate;

xx. -~ Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and such
other matters as may be required by the Board.

i, Reviewing other areas that may be brought under the purview of role of Audit Commitiee as specified in
Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, as and when amended

The audit commitiee shall mandatorily review the following information:

{1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

{2) statement of significant related parly transactions (as defined by the audit commitiee), submitted by
management;

{3) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

{4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

(5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the
audit committee.

{B6) statement of deviations:

(a) guarterly statement of deviation{s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

{b) annual statement of funds ufilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
in terms of Regulation 32(7).

DETAILS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 on 29/06/2021,
10/08/2021, 031172021, 12111/2021 & 14/02/2022.

DETAILS OF MEMBERS AND THEIR ATTENDANCE AT THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS;

Sl. No. Name Position No. of Committee Meetings
Held Attended
1 Mr. Gaurav Somani Chairman 5 5
Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha Member -7
3 Mr. Amar Chand Baid Member 5

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary function of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling
its= governance and supervisory responsibilities relating to human resource management and compensation. The
Committee reviews and where required, approves the human resource policies, remuneration proposals, succession
planning, evaluation of performances and development plans of Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management
and other employees of the Company. It also provides support in handling the nomination and remuneration
proposals for the Board members including Independent Directors

The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Listing Regulations.

COMPOSITION OF THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Momination & Remuneration Commitiee comprises of three Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman of the
Momination & Remuneration Committee is Independent Director. The Committee determines the remumeration
paid/payable to the Managing Director and other Executive Directors subject to the approval of the members.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2022, 2 (Twa) meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on_15%
May, 2021 & 30* March, 2022.

Details of members and their attendance at the meetings are as follows:
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Sl Name Position No. of Committee Meetings
No. Held Attended
1 Mr. Gaurav Somani Chairman 2 2
Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha Member 2 2
Mr. Amar Chand Baid Member ' 2 2

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall act in accordance with the prescribed provisions of section 178
of the-Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the LODR Regulations, 2015 and shall be responsible for: -

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE, INTER ALIA, INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING:

o  To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their appointment and/ or removal.

s To formulate criteria for and carry out evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board,;

« To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, and
recommend fo the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees

s Todevise a policy on Board diversity

s« \Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

« To cammy out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable

REMUNERATION POLICY

Your Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other Employees; regulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board. The Policy iz also
available on the website of the Company www.nicind.com in the investor relation section under ‘Secretarial

Documents’ [https:/fwerw nicind. comiwp-content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-NOMINATION-REMUNERATION-
POLICY pdf]
Details of Remuneration of the Directors for the financial year ended 315 March, 2022 Figures in (7
Director Consolidate Perquisites Performance Sitting Total
d Salary and other bonus/ Fees
Benefits Commission
Mr. Upmanyu Pathak 1.07.973/- § 232/- - - 147,205/
Mr. Privawart Jariwala 7.39.677/- - - - £:39,6771-

Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration for the Executive Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel and the same is then approved by the Board and Shareholders, where required. The
remuneration paid to Executive Directors is determined keeping in view the industry benchmark, the relative
performance of the Company to the industry performance. No remuneration (including sitting fee) has been paid to
the Non-Executive Directors in the financial year 2021-22.

The Non-Executive Directors do not hold any shares and/or convertible instruments in the Company and also they
do not have any pecuniary relationship or fransaction with the Company. The Company has not granted any stock
options to its Directors.

The Company has no stock option plans and hence such instruments do not form a part of the remuneration
package payable to any Executive and/or Mon-Executive Director.

The appointment of the Executive Directors is governad by resolutions passed by the Board and the Shareholders
of the Company, which cover the terms and conditions of such appointment, read with the service rules of the
Company.

Details of Fixed Components and Performance Linked Incentives
As per the remuneration approved by the shareholders, apart from the salary, no performance linked incentive is
paid to any of the Directors.

Service Contract, Notice Period and Severance Fees
Dwring the year under review, there were no service contracts, notice period and severance fees paid.
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PERFORMAMNCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration commitiee on the
basis of the Board Evaluation policy and framework adopted by the Board carries out the evaluation process of the
Independent Directors. The Committee formulates evaluation criteria for the Independent Directors which is broadly
based on personal integrity; ethical standards; confidentiality; knowledge of the institution's key activities;
deliberations or committee work; understands governance, etc.

C. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the Act and Regulation
20 and Part D of Schedule |l of the Listing Regulations.

COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. Gaurav Somani, Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha and
Mr. Amar Chand Baid. Mr. Gaurav Somani, Non Executive-Independant Director acts as a Chairman of the
Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Committee monitors the Company's response to investor complaints like non receipt of dividend, annual
reports, notices, etc. It has also been authorized to approve the issue of duplicate share certificates in lieu of those
lost or destroyed. The composition and the terms of reference of the Committee meet with the requirements of
Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations and the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Commitiee shall consider and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company.

Functions and Powers:

To review statutory compliance regarding share and debenture holders (Investors).

To review various reports related to Investors.

To review grievances of Investors.

To review transfer of shares.

To review transmission of shares.

To review deletion of names from share certificates.

To review change of name of member on share certificates.

To review issue of duplicate share certificates.

To review dematerialization of shares and

Any other matter relating to the above mentioned functions incidental to the shareholders/investors of the
Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Requlations, the power to execute transfers, transmissions, etc. of
shares in the physical form has been delegated to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents.

The Committee has met 6 (Six) times on 29/06/2021, 10/08/2021, 31/08/2021, 11/10/2021, 021272021 and
14/02/2021 during the period from 01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022.

DETAILS OF MEMBERS AND THEIR ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETINGS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

5| No. of Committee Meetings
2 Name Position
No.
Held Attended
1 Mr. Gaurav Somani Chairman & &
2 Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha Member 6 6
3 Mr. Amar Chand Baid Member 6 6

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Sunil Kumar Varma, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. The shareholders may
send their complaints at investors@ntcind.com.
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DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS' COMPLAINTS

{a) Number of shareholders’ complaints received during the year 0 )
{b) Number of shareholders’ complaints resolved during the year -0 (Zero)
{c}) Mumber of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders 0 )
{d) Number of complaints pending 0 )

D. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board in terms of
the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder.

COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The-5Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. Niraj Sinha, Mr. Gaurav Somani, and Mr. Privawart
Jariwala. Mr. Niraj Sinha, Non Executive-Independent Director acts as a Chairman of the Committee. Mr. Sunil
Kumar Varma, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company acts as the Secretary of the
Committee.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility which shall include the
activities to be undertaken by the Company to discharge its Corporate Social Responsibility.

2. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be undertaken by the Company to
discharge its Corporate Social Responsibility.

3. Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

4. Any other matter/thing as may be considered expedient by the Members in furtherance of, and to comply with
the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31= March, 2022, 2 (Two) meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on 1%
February, 2022 & 14™ February, 2022.

Details of members and their attendance at the meetings are as follows:

Sl Name Position No. of Committee Meetings
h Held Attended
1 Mr. Miraj Sinha Chairman 2 2
Mr. Gaurav Somani Membear 2 2
Mr. Privawart Jariwala Member _ 2 2

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY CONTRIBUTION
In terms of Section 135 of the Act, read with the rules made thereunder, at least 2% of average net profits of last
three financial years should be expended on CSR activities. The Company has contributed an amount of ¥
8,00,000/- which exceeds 2% of its average net profits, to Sri 5.L. Dugar Charitable Trust for activities related to
promotion and improvement of education and animal welfare.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
The Corporate Social Responsibility Report for the year ended 31st March, 2022 is attached as Annexure -D to the
Board's Report.

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The Company has formulated a Policy on Material Subsidiary and uploaded on the website of the Company.
hitps-/fwww_nicind. com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-POLICY -ON-MATERIAL-SUBSIDIARY  pdf. As on
31.03.2022, no other subsidiary other than NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited qualifies to be a material subsidiary of
the Company. The Company has complied with the corporate governance requirements with respect to its
subsidiaries as required under Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations.

5. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is consistently endeavoring to conduct its business in accordance with the highest standards of
business ethics and complying with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company believes that a good corporate governance structure would not only encourage value creation but

also provide accountability and control systems commensurate with the risks involved. The Board of Directors have
adopted the Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management {(hereinafter referred to as “the Code™)
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which has been posted on the Company's website at www.nicind.com. The Code has been circulated to all the
members of the Board and Senior Management and the compliance of the same has been affirmed by them. A
declaration signed by the Managing Director is given below.

“I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained, from all the members of the Board and Senior Management,

affirmation that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management in respect of
financial year 2021-22."

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director

Code of Insider Trading: The Board of Directors has also adopted Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosure of Unpublished Price sensitive information. A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website
at www_ntcind.com.

6. DETAILS OF GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

{a) The date, time and venue of the last 3 Annual General Meetings are as under: -

Financial MNo. of Special
Year Meeting Date Time Location Resolution, if
ended any, passed
AGM held through Video Confersnce /
Other Audio- Visual Means
30t Wednesday, 297 | 5 4
2020-21 | 4 om September, p.m (Deemed Venue was the Registered =
2021 Office of the Company i.e 149, B.T.
Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058)
AGM held through Video Conference /
R Other Audio- Visual Means
201920 |27 Seplbiber 1= -
AGM P - p.m (Deemed Venue was the Registered =
2020 Office of the Company i,e 149, B.T.
Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058)
Saturday, The A School, 149 B.T. Road
28t 03.00 & Aryans Schoaol, .T. Road,
2018-19 31= August, Kolkata- 700058 :
AGM 2019 p.m
{b) During the year under review, 1 (One) extra-ordinary general meeting of the shareholders held as
follows:
Sl. No. Date of Meeting Venue No. of Resolutions
1 01.02.2022 Mesting held through Video 1. Appointment of M/s R. Rampuria & Co.as

Conferencing (VC)/ Other Statutory Auditors to fill the Casual
| Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) Vacancy{Ordinary Resolution)

The voting pattern of the same was as follows:
Date of Meeting: 01.02.2022

ITEM NC.1: TO APPOINT M!S B. RAMPURIA & CO. AS THE STATUTORY AUDITOR TO FILL THE
CASULA VACANCY-SPECIAL RESOLUTION

Particular No. Of Votes | No. of Votes cast | Total (1}+(2)=(3) % of total no. of
caste through | through e voting valid votes cast
remote e voting during the

meeting

(1).Voted in favor of the 8208740 - 8208740 95.98

resolution

(2).Voted against the 1844 - 1844 002

_resolution

Total 8210584 - 8210584 100.00

| Invalid Votes - - j - :

{c} During the year under review, no special resclutions were passed by the Shareholders of the Company
through Postal Ballot.
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(d) Mone of the business proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing a
resolution through postal ballot.

7. CEO -CFO CERTIFICATION

The CEO and the CFO of the Company have given a certificate on financial reporting and internal controls to the
Board in terms of the Listing Regulations and the same is annexed.

8. DISCLOSURES

a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions: All contracts with our affiliates entered
into during the said period have no potential conflict of interests of the Company at large and are being
carried out at an arm’'s length at fair market value. There are no materially significant related party
transactions i.e. any transaction of material nature, with its promoters, directors or the management or
relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large, other than in the
normal course of business. The mandatory disclosure of transactions with related parties, in compliance
with the Indian Accounting Standard (IAS-24), forms part of this Annual Report.

The Company has formulated a policy to govern its Related Party Transactions and the same has been
uploaded on the website at the link: hitps:/fwww nicind com/wp-contentfuploads/2019/09/Policy-on-
Determination-of-Materiality _ntc_pdf

b} Statutory Compliances: The Company regularly complies with the requirements of the Listing Regulations
as well as the requlatory authorities on the matters relating to the capital market and no penalties /
resftrictions have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory
authority, during the last three years.

c] Whistle Blower policy: The Company has formulated and published a Whistle Blower Policy to provide
Vigil Mechanism for employees including directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The
provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of the Section 177{9) of the Act and the Listing
Requlations with stock exchanges.

The Policy is also placed on the website of the Company at the link https:/'www ntcind com/wp-
content/uploads/2015/05/Vigilance-Mechanism-or-Whistle-Blower-Policy _ntc pdf

Mone of the officials/personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The
Ombudsman has not received any complaint during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

d} Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: In preparation of Financial Statements, the Company has followed
the Indian Accounting Standards issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The significant
Accounting Standards have been set out in the notes to Accounts of the Audited Accounts.

e} Subsidiary Monitoring Framework: All the subsidiaries of the Company are managed by their respective
Boards having rights and obligations to manage such companies in the best interest of their stakeholders.
As the Company holds the majority stake in most of its subsidiaries, the Company notes the workings of its
subsidiaries by following means:

i. Minutes of the Board Meetings of the Subsidiary Companies are placed before the Board Meeting of
the Company.

i The Audit Committee of the Company reviews the Financial Statements, in particular the investments
made by the Subsidiary Companies.

iii.  The Company has framed a policy for determining its ‘Material Subsidiaries’ and the same is available
on its website at: hitps:/’'www ntcind.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/NTC-POLICY-0ON-MATERIAL-
SUBSIDIARY pdf

fi Compliance of Mandatory Requirements and Adoption of Non-mandatory requirements of SEBI
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015: The Company duly complied with all
the mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
with the Stock Exchanges.

The Company has complied with the discretionary requirements as specified in part E of Schedule Il of
SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 as far as they are applicable to the
Company.

g) The Company is not dealing in commodity and hence disclosure relating to commodity price risks and
commodity hedging activities are not applicable.
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h) Compliance Certificate of the auditors: Ms. Prachi Todi, (Membership Mo: A53022; COP: 225964),
Company Secretary in Practice has certified that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17-27, clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46{2) and
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations and the same is annexed to this report as
Annexure fo this Report.

i) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to
the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor
is a part: Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in Note 28(b) to the Standalone
Financial Statements and Mote 29(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

II  The company has complied with the Corporate Governance Requirements specified in Regulations 17 to
27and Regulation 46(2) (b) to (i) of the LODR Regulations, 2015.

k) Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice: Ms. Prachi Todi (Membership No: A53022; COP:
22964), Company Secretary in Practice has certified that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority and the same is annexed to this report
as Annexure to this Report.

I} Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR): MDAR forms part of the Annual Report and the
same is attached separately in this Annual Report.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
The Company interacts with the Shareholders through the multiple channels of communication such as
publication of results, Annual Report and the Company's website. The Company alsc informs the Stock
Exchange in a prompt manner, all price sensitive and all other matters which in its opinion, are material and
relevant for the Shareholders.

a. The quarterly un-audited financial results and annual audited financial results are published in all editions of
Business Standard and/or The Financial Express in English, and Kalantar, Dainik Lipi, Durants Barta andfor
Arthik Lipi in Bengali.

b. The quarterly financial results and annual audited financial results of the Company are sent to The Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited.

c. The Company's financial results are also displayed on its website, www nicind.com.

d. In compliance of listing obligations requirements your company has designated an e-mail id as
investors@ntcind.com especially for its investors.

e. No presentation was made to the institutional investors or to the analysts during the year under review.
f.  The Company’'s website does not display any official news releases.

g. Annual Report, containing /inter alia, Director's Report, Auditors’ Report, Audited Annual Accounts and other
important information were circulated to members and others entitled thereto.

10. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL
As per SEBI (Depositories & Participants) Requlation, 2003, certificate of Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit
issued by a Practicing Company Secretary, confirming that the total issued capital of the Company is in
agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of dematerialised shares held
with NSDL and CDSL, is placed before the Board on a quarterly basis and also submitted to the stock
exchanges.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

Details of Annual General Meeting for F. Y. 2021-22

Diate . | Saturday, 24" September, 2022

Venue - | To be held through Video Conference ("VC") or Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVMY)
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Time 2 12.30 P.M.

Financial Calendar

Financial year: 1= April, 2021 to 31 March, 2022

For the year ended 31% March, 2022, resuits were adopted on:
» 109 August, 2021: First quarter (Un-audited)
s 120 November, 2021: Half yearly (Un-audited)
» 14% February, 2022: Third quarter (Un-audited)
»  30% May, 2022: Annual {Audited)

For the year ending 31% March, 2023, the results are likely to be adopted:
+ on or before 14" August, 2022 First quarter (Un-audited)
+ on or before 14% November, 2022 Half yearly (Un-audited)
+ on or before 14 February, 2022 Third quarter (Un-audited)
» onor before 30% May, 2023: Annual (Audited)

Listing on Stock Exchanges

The shares of the Company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges, namely

Name of the Stock Exchange Address of the Stock Exchange Stock Code
The Calcutta Stock Exchange 7, Lyons Range, Kolkata — 700 001 28044
Limited Website: www cse-india.com

. Phiroz Jeejabhoy Towers, Dalal Strest,
BSE Limited Mumbai — 400 001, Website: www bseindia.com 526723
The listing fees for the financial year 2022-23 have been paid to the above Stock Exchanges.
Depositories
Name of the Depository Address of the Depository Website

Mational Securities Depository Lid.

Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, Lower
Parel Mumbai - 400 013

www.nsdl.colin

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

P J Towers, 17 Floor, Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai — 400 001

www cdslindia.com

The International Securities ldentification Number (ISIN) allotted to Company’s securities under the Depository

system is INES20C01017.

Market price data

The monthly high and low share price data at the BSE Limited for the financial year 2021-22:

Month Share Price (High) | Share Price (Low) A BSE Sensex (High) | BSE Sensex (Low)
Apr-21 67.00 54.50 5037577 47 204.50
May-21 64.50 56.20 5201322 48.028.07
Jun-21 69.85 57.60 5312673 51.450°538
Jul-21 79.80 60.00 53.290.81 5160273
Aug-21 83.80 66.25 5762526 52.6504.08
Sep-21 152.65 i2.50 6041232 57.263.90
Oct-21 194.00 110.20 62.245.43 5855114
Mov-21 145.95 108.00 61,036.56 5638293
Dec-21 119.00 101.50 5920337 55.132.658
Jan-22 111.60 97.05 6147515 56.409.63
Feb-22 105.75 83.05 5961851 54 383 20
Mar-22 100.00 80.60 | 58.890.92 52.260.82
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Performance of Company’s Scripts on BSE vs BSE Sensex
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Registrar & Share Transfer Agents

/s Niche Technologies Private Limited

34, Auckland Place, Tth Floor, Room No.7A & 7B

Kolkata — 700 017, Phone No. 033 2230-6616/6617/6618
e-mail; nichetechpli@nichetechpl.com

Contact Person — Mr. 5. Abbas (Sr. Manager — Systems)

Share Transfer System

All requests for dematerialisation of shares, which are found to be in order, are generally processed within 15 days
and the confirmation is given to the respective depositories i.e., National Securities Depository Limited (N5SDL) and
Central Depository Services {India) Limited {CDSL).

Share transfers in physical form are generally registered within 15 days from the date of receipt provided that the
documents are found to be in order. Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee considers and approves the transfer
proposals.

As per SEBI Notification No. SEBILAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment vide
Motification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2013, requests for effecting transfa.r of securities
{except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be processad from 1st April, 2019 unless the
securities are held in the dematerialised form with the depositories. According to the Listing Regulations, ngrﬁhares
can be transferred unless they are held in dematerialised mode. Therefore, for effecting any transfer, the securities:
shall mandatorily be required to be in demat form. Hence, Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to dematerialize their holdings.

Further, SEBI vide its Circular no. SEBVHO/MIRSD/RTAMB/CIR/P/2020/166 dated Tth September, 2020 has ﬁxed'
31st March, 2021 as the cut-off date for re-lodgement of physical share transfer requests and has prmlded that
such transferred shares shall be issued only in demat mode. The Company has received no such request for
transfer of securities held in physical mode during the financial year 2021-22. .

Pursuant to the provisions of regulation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR.) Regulations, 2015, a certificate on a mﬂy basis
confirming the compliance of share transfer formalities, quarterly certificate for timely dematerialization of the shares
as per SEBI (Depositories & Participants) Regulation, 1996 are sent to the Exchanges by the Reglsil"atiﬁ?;arﬁ;fer
Agent.

Dividend payment date

The Company has not declared any dividend for the relevant Financial Year.
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Distribution of Shareholding

Distribution of shareholding by size as on 31% March 2022

Up to 500 6916 92.84 608,793 510
501 - 1000 231 3N 233,428 1.95
1001 -5000 171 23 400,600 335
5001 — 10000 18 0.24 139,579 1.17
10001 — 50000 32 0.43 605,182 sO7
50001 — 100000 9 0.12 616,202 £E16
100001 and above 12 0.16 9,340,216 78.20
Total 7449 100.00 1,19,44,000 100.00

Distribution of shareholding by category as on 31st March 2022

Promoters and Promoter Group 7.870.699 6590
Banks, Financial Institutions etc. 5£33.900 4.89
Corporate Bodies 544 366 456
Indian Public 2,896,370 2425
NRIs/ OCBs 46,797 0.39
Clearing Members 1,868 0.02
Total 11,944,000 100.00
5,000,000 65.90
8,000,000
7,000,000
6,000,000
5000000 - 24.25
4,000,000
3,000,000
2,000,000 - 1so 456
1,000,000 - ‘ 0.39
I S — ana
Promoters and Banks, Financial Corporate Indian Public NRls/ OCBs Clearing
Promoter Group Institutions etc. Bodies Members
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List of Top Ten Shareholders as on 315 March, 2022

» » L , No. of Shares % of
5L No. | Name of the Shareholder ' held ' Sﬁ.,amh{ﬂdm
1 sheetal Dugar 1933424 16.19
2 ¥MS Finance Private Limited 1910122 15.99
3 Vinod Dugar 1491523 12.49
4 Loka Properties Private Limited 1239405 10.36
5 Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 921225 171
6 Mexpact Lid 582000 4.87
¥ Ankur Constructions Private Limited 375000 3.14
a Maheswari Plaza Resorts Limited 280233 2.35
9 Manisha Pincha 203307 170
10 Bhanu Satishchandra Doshi 186448 1.56
Details of shares held by Directors as on 315 March, 2022 N
‘Mame of Director No. of Equity Shares % of Total holding
Mr. Priyawart Jariwala Nil Nil
Mr. Niraj Sinha il Mil
Mr. Amar Chand Baid Nil Mil
Mr. Gaurav Somani Nil Nil
Mr. Tapan Kumar Chakraborty Mil Nil
Ms. Vembi Krishnamurthy Radha Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

Shares held in dematerialised and physical form as on 31 March 2022

Status of Mo. of Shares | % of Total Shares Demat status as on
Dematerialisation
31.03.2022
i |

Share held in

NSDL 6,824 709 ET.14%
Share held in

CDSL 4 788 952 40 10%
S';E"‘?S *I‘?'d in 330,339 277%
PIYICER.JONT W57.14% W4010% W2.77%
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Transfer of Unclaimed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

The Company has transferred to the Investor Education & Protection Fund, as per section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013, all unclaimed/unpaid dividends for more than seven years. Further as per section 124 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the rules made thersunder, all shares in respect of which dividend is unpaid/ unclaimed for a
period of seven consecutive years shall also be transferrad to |EPF.

As per the requirements of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 ('IEPF Rules 2016°), the Company will be sending intimation to all the shareholders who had
not claimed/encashed their dividends consecutively for the last seven years informing them that in the event those
shareholders do not claim the same, the Company will be required to transfer the corresponding shares to the IEPF
Demat Account prescribed under the IEPF Rules, 2016. The Company will also simultaneously publish notice in the
leading newspapers in this regard and also upload the same on the “Investors Section” of the Company’s website
details of such shareholders and shares which are due for transfer to IEPF Demat Account.

Outstanding GDR's/ADR's/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments
The Company has not issued any GDR's/ADR's/\Warrants/Stock Options or any other Convertible Instruments.
Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company is not dealing in commodity and hence disclosure relating to commodity price risks and commaodity
hedging activities are not applicable.

Plant Location and address for correspondence:
ntc industries limited
149, B. T. Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata — Y000558, Website: www.ntcind.com.

For & on behalf of the Board

Place: Kolkata

Date: 30™ May, 2022
Priyawart Jariwala Niraj Sinha
Managing Director Director
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuapnt o Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10){(1} of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members of

Mis NTC Industries Limited
149, B.T.Road, Kamarhati
Kolkata- 7000538

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of M/s
NTC. Industries Limited, CIN: L70109WB1991PLC053562 and having registered office at 149, B.T. Road,
Kamarhati, Kolkata- 700058 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), as produced before me by the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub
clause 10 (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Requlations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications {including Directors Identification
MNumber (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in} as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by
the Company & its Officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated
below, for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2022, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors by the Securities & Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority.

: [I;‘ Name of Director DIN Designation Ezt:{::t?"r;?]:n al
1. | VEMBI KRISHNAMURTHY RADHA 07141131 ,’:‘v‘;”r;’l‘fgfri‘ffmr 31/03/2015

2. | GAURAV SOMANI 06428114 Independent Director | 15/11/2012

3. | AMAR CHAND BAID 07741980 Independent Director | 31/03/2017

4. | NIRAJ SINHA 06979287 Independent Director | 25/04/2021 '
5. | PRIYAWART JARIWALA 09148113 Managing Director 22/05/2021

6. | TAPAN KUMAR CHAKRABORTY 09175798 Director 22/05/2021

7. | UPMANYU PATHAK® 06563100 Managing Director 09/11/2017

* Ceased fo be a Director w.e.f 22/05/2021

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment [ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on the verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Prachi Todi

Practicing Company Secretary

M. Mo.: 53022 Date: 30" May, 2022
C.P. No.: 22964 Place: Kolkata

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1445/2021
UDIN: A053022D000433567
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PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

M/s NTC Industries Limited
149, B.T.Road, Kamarhati
Kolkata- 700058

1. 1, Prachi Todi, Practicing Company Secretary, have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by M/s NTC Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company™), for the year ended on 31%
March 2022 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46{2) and para C and D of
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “the Listing Regulations™)

Managements' Responsibility

2. The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal contrel and procedures to ensure the
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

My Responsibility
3. My examination is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
the opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Opinion
4. In my opinion, and to best of my information and according to explanations given to me, | certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

5. | further state that such compliance is neither assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the Management has conductad the affairs of the Company.

Prachi Todi

Practicing Company Secretary

M. No.: 53022 Date: 30 May, 2022
C.P. No.: 22964 Place: Kolkata

Peer Review Centificate No.: 1445/2021
UDIN: AD53022D000433567
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

To,
The Board of Directors,
ntc industries limited

We, Privawart Jariwala, Managing Director appointed in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Prem Chand Khator,
Chief Financial Officer, hereby certify to the Board that:

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31% March,
2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions enterad into by the Company during the
year ended 31% March, 2022 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting
and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of
such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to
rectify these deficiencies.

d} We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Commitiee that:
i. there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii. there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the period and

iii. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For ntc industries limited

Place: Kolkata
Date; 30" May, 2022

Priyawart Jariwala Prem Chand Khator
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL SECTION
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To,
The Members of
NTC Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NTC Industries Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
{"lnd A57) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10} of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i=s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

|.|S[|,: Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
1 Litigations and claims - provisions and | Our key procedures included, but not limited to, the
contingent liabilities following:
Refer note 38 to 41 to the standalone a) Assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s
financial statements. accounting policies relating to provisions and
contingent liability by comparing with the applicable
The Company is involved in indirect tax and accounting standards;
other litigations (litigations’) that are b) Assessed the Company’'s process and the
pending with different statutory authorities. underlying controls for identification of the pending
litigations and completeness for financial reporting
The level of management judgement and also for monitoring of significant developments
associated with determining the need for, in relation to such pending litigations;
and the quanium of, provisions for any c) Assessed the Company's assumptions and
liabilities arising from these litigations is estimates in respect of litigations, including the
considered to be high. This judgement is liabilities or provisions recognized or contingent
dependent on a number of significant liabilities disclosed in the standalone financial
assumptions and assessments  which statements. This involved assessing he probability
involves interpreting the various applicable of an unfavourable outcome of a given proceeding
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rules, regulations, practices and and the reliability of estimates of related amounts;
considering precedents in the wvarious d) Performed substantive procedures on  the
jurisdictions. underlying calculations supporting the provisions
recorded;
This matter is considered as a key audit e} Assessed the management's conclusions through
matter, in view of the uncertainty regarding understanding relevant judicial precedents in similar
the outcome of these litigations, the cases and the applicable rules and regulations;
significance of the amounts involved and f) Engaged subject matter specialists to gain an
the subjectivity involved in management's understanding of the current status of litigations and
judgement as to whether the amount should monitored changes in the disputes, if any, through
be recognized as a provision or only discussions with the management and by reading
disclosed as contingent liability in the external advice received by the Company, where
standalone financial statements. relevant, to validate management’'s conclusions;
and
The Company has material uncertain tax 8 ?55@5? the; ?E[I:prnpr:aterl?as {afrthe fjl_un?panys
positions including matters under dispute CRCRPIOI S NG AR LY e
which’ invelveswsignificant’ Judgment to related to litigations .and whether these are
dolo : adequately presented in the standalone financial
grmine the possible outcome of these
disputes. statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseesing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductad in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatemeant when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 3As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
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and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matiers that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefare the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’) issued by the Central Government

in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f)  With respect {o the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements. Refer note 34 to 41 to the standalone financial statements

II. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

ll. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

IV. {a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any personis) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and (b} contain any material misstatement; and

V. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For R RAMPURIA & COMPANY,
Chartered Accountants
FEMN: 325211E

(CA Rajendra Rampuria)
{Partner)
Membership Number: 106771

Date: 30/05/2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 2210877 14JXREB5661
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ANNEXURE A

(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS"” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
NTC INDUSTRIES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i
(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of all immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d} The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and its intangible assets during the year
and accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1986 and rules made thereunder and accordingly, reporting under clause {i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

{a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in aggregate, at any
point of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and hence reporting under clause 3{ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

ii.
{a) During the year the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or given
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity.

{A) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and
Associates are as follows:

Guarantees Security Loans Advances
(¥ In Lakhs) (¥ In Lakhs) (% In Lakhs) (¥ In Lakhs)
Aggregate amount
granted/provided  during
the year
Subsidiaries - - - 216.04
Joint Ventures
Associates
Balance Qutstanding as at
balance sheet date in
respect of above cases
Subsidiaries
Joint Ventures
|- Associates = = = 3.99
AND

(B) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than subsidiary, joint
ventures and associates are as follows:

Guarantees Security Loans Advances
(T In Lakhs) (¥ In Lakhs) (% In Lakhs) (¥ In Lakhs)

AMNUAL REPORT 2021-2022| NTC INDUSTRIES LTD PAGE NO : 61



Aggregate amount
granted/provided  during
the year

Others - - 2836.00
Balance Qutstanding as at
balance sheet date in

respect of above cases
Others

2791.15

(b) During the year the investments made, or guarantees provided, or securities given by the Company and the
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided
are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest have not been stipulated. In the absence of stipulation of repayment terms, we are unable to
comment on the reqularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

(d) In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest have not been stipulated. Hence, the requirement under paragraph 3(iii)(d) of the Order are not
applicable to the company.

(e) According to the information explanation provided to us, the loan or advance in the nature of loan granted
has not fallen due during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iiij(e) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

{f) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loans and/or advances
in the nature of loans which are repayable on demand without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

——

All Parties(%) Promoter(%) Related Parties(Z)

Aggregate  amount of loans/
advances in nature of loans
-Repayable on demand (A)
-Agreement does not specify any - - 2638.00
terms or period of repayment (B)

Total (A+B) - - 2838.00
Percentage of loans/ advances in
nature of loans to the total loans - - 67.06%

iv.  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied with

the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted and
investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v.  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not accepted
any deposite from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules framed there under. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal in this respect.

vi.  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company and
accordingly, reporting under clause (jii)(f) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

vii.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goeds and service tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess have been regularly deposited by the company with appropriate authorities in all cases during the
year.

Mo undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ Siate
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess
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and any other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given by the management and examination of records of the
Company, the outstanding dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other
statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to which the | Forum where dispute

statute dues (T In Lacs) amount relates is pending

Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty 3.131.82 October 1994 to | Customs, Excise &

1944 October 1996 Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal

Central Excize Act, | Penalty 135.81 September 28, 1996 | Customs, Excise &

1944 to October 31, 1996 | Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal

wiii. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not surrendered

or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause (vili) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company
has not defaulted in repayments of loans or borrowings or in repayment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b)  The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority.

{c)  The company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report on
clause {ix)(c) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the procedures performed by us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short term
basis have been used for long term purposed by the company.

(e)  According to the information explanation given by the management, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures and accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information explanation given by the management, the Company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and
accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(f) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money during the year by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and
accordingly, reporting under clause (x){a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures
during the year and accordingly, reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

Xi.

(a) Mo fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the

year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed
by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year {and upto the date of this report) and accordingly, reporting under clause (xi)(c) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.
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i According to the information and explanations given by the management and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the company has adequate internal audit system commensurate with size and the nature of
its businaess.

(b} We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the company during the
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given by the management, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to company and accordingly, reporting
under clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

XVi.

(a) The Company is not required fo be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b The Company has not conducted any MNon-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate of
Reqistration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Further, the
Company has not conducted any Housing Finance activities during the year.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India.

(d) The Group does not have more than one CIC and accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi){d) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year in the immediately preceding
financial year and accordingly, reporting under clause (xvii) of paragraph 3 of the Crder is not applicable.

xviii.  There has been resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and, there were no issues, objections or
concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 135 of
the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has made the required contributions during the year
and there are no unspent amounts which are required to be transferred eitherto a Fund or to a Special
Account as per the provisions of section 135 of the act read with schedule VIl and accordingly, reporting
under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For R RAMPURIA & COMPANY,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 325211E

(CA Rajendra Rampuria)
(Partner)
Membership Number: 108771

Date: 30/05/2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 221087 71AJXREB&BE1
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NTC Industries Limited ("the Company™)
as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

COur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) issued by ICAl and the 5tandards on Auditing prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and ocperating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial confrel over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporing to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
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31, 2022, based on-the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For R RAMPURIA & COMPANY,
Chartered Accountants
FEMN: 325211E

(CA Rajendra Rampuria)
(Partner)
Membership Number: 106771

Date: 30/05/2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 2210877 1AJXREBS66G1
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BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2022

A | ASSETS

1. MWon-current assets
{a}. Property, Plant and Equipment EES 456.97
b} Capital work-in-progress 4B 28543
{z} Other Intangible Assets 4 0.96
{d) Financialassets
{1} Investments 5 21220
(2} Deferred tax ssseis net) L] G7.18
(fi Other non-cument assets T 352 18
Tcrl_:1 non-current assets 1,397.91
2, Current assets
' {a} Inventories 8 FOOTO
(o} Financial Assets
(il Trade Receiwbles g 504.08
(8} Cash and cash equivalents 10 44 81
{ii} Loans 11 3,510.18
{c) Other current assets 12 588.35
Total current assets 5. 228.02
Total assets 7,625.93
B | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
{38} Equity share capital 134 1,104.40
(b} Other equity 138 4.006.53
Total equity 5,200.93
2. Non-current liabilities
{8} Financial Liakilities
{i) Bomowings 14 200,00
(B} Provisions 15 288.52
Total non-current liabilities 5,669.45
2. Current liabilities
(3} Financial liakilities
{1 Borrowings 16 243.21
(i} Trade Payables 17
{a) Total Cutstanding dues of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 20689
{b) Total Qutstanding dues of Creditars Others Than Micro, Small 828.88
& Medium Enterprises
(b} Other current liakilities 18 84482
e} Provisions 12 87.07
d} Current Tax Liabilities (MNet) 20 120.13
Total current liabilities 1,956:48
Totfal equity and liabilities 7 625.9]
The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Financial 5tatements
As per gur report of even date attached
For . RAMPURIA & COMPANY For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants \ _—
Fimm registration Mo. 325211E
Privawart Jariwala Miraj Sinha
Managing Director Director

CA RAJENDRA RAMPURIA
Fartner
Membership No. 108771

Prem Chand Khator Sumnil lﬁmﬁr‘ﬁaﬂpa
Place : Holkaia. Chief Financial Oficer Company Secretary
Date - 30.05.2022 L
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STATEMENT OF

PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March 2022

Year ended Year ended|
Sl " Note 3
No. Particulars Mo March 31, 2022 March 31, 2024
{¥ in Lacs) {Fin Lacs)
I Rewenues From Operations 214 2.435684 2.378.38
I JCtherincome 22 530.24 43819
I JTotal iIncome {1+1} 301588 2 B15.67
IV |EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23 TO3.87 1.101.36
Furchases of sfock-in-Trads 24 11438 17.01
Changes in imnventories of finised goods, Stock-in-Trade & work-in-progress 25 288.15 [345.41)
Excise Duty 182.51 1858.432
Employes benefils expensse 28 282.01 313.20
Finance cosis 27 2412 27.02
Depreciation G64.83 50.55
Cther expenses 28 T76.50 502.58
Total Expenses 2 466.38 1,960.72
V |Profit{Loss) before exceptional items and taxes (III4V) 548 50 254.85
V1 JAdd ( (Less) : Exceplional items
Vil |Profitl{Loss) before Tax (V-WI) 5489 50 854.85
VIl |Tax expenses :
{a) Cument tax 28 8883 205.00
(b} Deferred tax 28 2258 25.70
(2] Tax adjustments for esdier years {16.30) [4.77)
1% |Profit! (loss) for the period after Tax (PAT) 44428 628.92
¥ | Other Comprehensive Income
a. Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
(i} Remeasurements of post-employment benefit cbligations 30 4818 20.18
(ii} Changes in fair wiue of equity Instruments through other
Comprehensive Income 218.24 [23.21)
b. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (a+h) 267.42 [3.12)
Xl |Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X) T11.70 625.20
Xll_|Earnings per share: - Basic/Diluted {in T} 3.72 5.85
The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attachad

For R. RAMPURIA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration Mo. 325211E

CA RAJENDRA RAMPURIA
Partner
Membership No. 108771

Place : Kolkata.

Date

1 30.05.2022
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For and on behalf of the Board

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Direcitor

Prem Chand Khator
Chief Financial Oficer

Miraj Sinha
Director

Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31st March 2022

For the Year ended For the Year ended
SL.No. Particulars March 31, 2022 March 34, 2021
(€ in Lacs) (€ in Lacs)
A |Casgh flow from operating activities :
Met-profit before fax as per Statement of Profil & Loss 549.50 654,85
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 64.83 50.55
Unrealised Forex Gain 298
Interest paid 16.53 2527
Interest received (477.63) (411.72)
Provision of Employee's refirement & cumrent benefits 3415 (359.14) 36.78 (299.12)
Operating profit before working capital changes 190.36 L
(Increase)/ Decrease in imentories 35022 (474.98)
(lncrease)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables 79.03 (913.08)
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables & other payables (753.50)] (324,25 77351 {614.55)|
Cash generated from operations (133.90) (58.82)
Less: Direct taxes (paid) / refunds including interest (net) (85.30) (53.73)
Net cash generated/(used) from operating activities {2‘!9.1{]]] {112.55)
B. |Cash flow from investing activities :
Loan Repaid by Body Corporate 2,065 06
Increasef{decrease) in Fixed Asseis & CWIP {25.51)| (323.16)
Loan Given fo Body Corporate (2, 771.00) 46.73
Interest received J27.03 411.72
Net cash from investing activities (400.43)] 135.29
. |Cash flow from financing activifies :
Proceeds from issue of shares 605.96
Proceeds / (repayment) of long term borrowings {2.29)
Proceeds / (repayment) of short term bormmrowings 10942 {1.27)
Interest paid (16.53)) (29.27)
Met cagh generated/{used) in financing activities 92.59 577.02
Met increaselidecrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (A+B+C) (526.74) 599.76
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 544.61 44 85
Casgh and cash equivalents Closing balance 11787 644,61
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE:
Balances with bank 117,46 644 59
Cash on hand 0.41 0.02
117.87 644,64
As per our report of even date attached

For R. RAMPURIA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 325211E

CA RAJENDRA RAMPURIA

Pariner

Membership No. 108771

Place : Kolkata.
Date : 30.05.2022
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For and on behalf of the Board

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director

Prem Chand Khator
Chief Financial Officer

Miraj Sinha
Director

Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secrefany
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

The Standalone Financial Statements of “NTC Industries Limited” ("the Company™) are for the year ended 31st
March 20272.

The Company is a domestic public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office
at 149, B.T. RHoad, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058. The Company's shares are listed and traded on the Bombay Stock
Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE). The company is engaged in business of
manufacturing of Cigarette and Smoking Mixture.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Companies Act”),as applicable and guidelines issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April, 2017

Accounting policies have been applied consistantly to all periods presented in these financial statements, except for
new accounting standards adopted by the Company.

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification G.5.R 255(E) Dated:
23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain items that
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to =ell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability.

Fair Value Measurement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognized
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 — Presentation ef Financial
Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and

impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment recognized as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD. )

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. Expenses
capitalized-also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All up gradation / enhancements are
charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

An item of properiy, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is dstermined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Depreciation of these assets commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on commissioning. ltems of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets
after commissioning, less its residual value, over their useful lives as pacified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013 on a sfraight line basis. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment of the Company are as follows:

Plant, Property & Equipment Useful life
Vehicles 8 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5-15 years
Computer J years
Plant and Equipment 15 years
Factory Building 30 years

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are capitalized
upon acquisition and measured initially at cost comprising the purchase price (including import duties and non-
refundable taxes) and directly attributable costs to prepare the asset for its intended use.

The carrying value of intangible assets includes desmed cost which represents the carrying value of intangible
assets recognized as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP.

The useful life of an intangible asset is considered finite due to the likelihood of technical technological
obsolescence (e.g., computer software, design, prototypes). Hence Intangible assets that have finite lives are
amortized over their estimated useful lives by the straight-line method unless it is practical to reliably determine the
pattern of benefits arising from the asset.

All intangible assets are tested for impairment. Amortization expenses and impairment losses and reversal of
impairment losses are taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Thus, after initial recognition, an intangible asset is
carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and / or impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually to determine if a reset of such useful life is required for
assets with finite lives.

Plant, Property & Equipment Useful life
Payroll Software 5 years

Impairment of Assets

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent, the carrying amount of assets or cash generating units exceed
their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash
generating unit and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Impairment losses recognized in prior years are
reversed when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognized no longer exist or have decreased. Such
reversals are recognized as an increase in carrying amounts of assets to the extent that it does not execeed the
carrying amounts that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had no impaisment loss
been recognized in previous years.

Inventories
a) Raw Materials: At lower of weighted average cost or net realizable value.
b) Work in progress: At lower of cost or net realizable valus.
¢) Finished Goods and Stock in trade: At lower of cost or net realizable value.
d) Stores and Spares, Packing: At lower of Weighted average cost or net realizable value
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Foreign Currency Transactions
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date. Gains/
losses arising on settlement as also on translation of monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
Imvestment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
Financial Assets

Recognition: Financial assets include Investments, Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents. Such assets are
initially recognized at transaction price when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The transaction
price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being fair valued through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification: Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the assets were acguired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on such
classification.

Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

{a) amortized cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from payments
of principal and/ or interest.

{b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), where the financial assets are
held not only for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the
sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value being recognized in other comprehensive income.

{c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assets are managed in accordance with an approved
investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value of such assets. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value being recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents etc. are classified for measurement at amortized cost while
investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular investments in equity
instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at initial
recognition may be made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

Impairment: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial
assets) such as trade receivables, held at amortized cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value
through other comprehansive income are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognized if the credit
quality of the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognized at the value of the respective
contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are derecognized
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled and on expiry.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services
rendered, net of returns and discounts to customers.

Fevenue from the sale of goods includes excise and other duties which the Company pays as a principal, but
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as sales tax and value added tax. Revenue from the sale
of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer,
which is mainly upon delivery, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the consideration is
probable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD.)

Fevenue from services is recognized in the periods in which the services are rendered to the customer except
otherwise stated.

Rental Income (exclusive of Taxes) from assets given on license is recognized on rendering of services to tenants.
This policy is not applicable for variable rental Income based on turnover of the tenant.

Interest income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.
Employee Benefits

a) Short term employee benefits: All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as shori-term employes benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and short term
compensated absences, the expected cost of ex-gratia, efc are recognized in the period in which the
employes renders the related services.

b} Post-employment benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Provident fund, employees state
insurance etc. are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the
statements of profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of gratuity and leave encashment are
considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for on the basis of an independent actuarial
valuation.

Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes. Current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss is
provided as the amount of fax payable in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates and tax laws
enacted during the period along with the Income Computation and disclosure standards, together with any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the
amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Income fax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are

disclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to setile on net basis,
or to realize the asset and setile the liability simultansously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a legal or constructive obligation; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated. The amount so recognized is a best estimate of the consideration required to seitle the obligation at the
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. In an event when the time
value of money is material, the provision is carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to settle the
obligation.

Contingent Liability
Liabilities which are contingent in nature are not provided for in the accounts and the same are separately disclosed
by way of notes to accounts.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Met profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharehalders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Prior Period Adjustments

Adjustment of identifiable items of income and expenditure pertaining to prior period are accounted for.as prior
periods adjustments.
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3. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liakilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting period end.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period.

2. Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In

estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available.

3. Actuarial Valuation:

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made through
independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income.
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MOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
(¥ in Lacs) ¥ in Lacs)
5. Non-current Investment
Investment in Equity, Trade Investments
Quoted (at Fair Market Value, fully paid)
RDE Realty & Infrastructure Lid.
(12 60,000 shares of Rs 10 each) B 220
Unquoted: Wholly owned Subsidiary (w.e.f 27th August. 2014)
{at cost. fully paid)
MTCIL Real Estate Private Limited (10000 shares of Rs 10 each) 1.00 1.00
MTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited {10000 shares of Rs 10 each) 1.00 1.00
MNTCIL Realty Private Limited (10000 shares of Rs 10 each) 1.00 1.00
MWTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited (10000 shares of Bs 10 each) 1.00 1.00
TOTAL 437.44 218.20
I6. Deferred tax assets (net)
Defered tax assets 67.16 92 86
Less ; Deferred tax lizbifties (22 59) (2570
TOTAL A44.57 67.16
. Other assets
Advances other than Capital Advances
Deposit with Excise Authority 289505 299.05
Securnty Deposits AT 64 60.14
TOTAL J356.69 359.19
8. Inventories
(at lower of cost and net realisable value )
Raw matenals (including packing materials) 25576 30594
Work-in-progress - -
Finished goods (imanufactured) 67.49 401.35
Stock-in-trade {goods purchased for resale) 3761 1.90
Stores and Spares 79.71 77.60
TOTAL 440.57 T90.79
4, Trade receivables {Current)
(Unsecured, considered good) 460.06 504 08
TOTAL 460.06 594.08
Trade Receivables:-
Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Ageing Ami (¥ in Lacs)
Less than 6 months 30097
& months -1 year 2223
() Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1-Z years 135.61
2-3 years 1.25
Maore than 3 years -
TOTAL 460.06
Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Particulars ein Amt (€ in Lacs)
Less than 6 months 37T
6 months -1 year 170.58
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1-2 years 46 4%
2-3 years -
More than 3 years !
TOTAL 594.08
10. Cash and cash equivalents
- Balances with bank 85.46 644 5%
- Fixed Deposits (For lien against guarantees and letier of credit with maturity
period less than 90 days) 32.00 -
- Cash on hand (As certified by the management) 041 0.02
TOTAL 117.87 644.61
11. Loans
Loans to Related parties - Considered good,Unseured
Loan to Body Corporate 2791.15 -
Loans to Others than related parties - Considered good,Unseured
Loan to Body Corporate (other than related) 1,441.13 3,510.19
TOTAL 4,232.28 3,510.1%
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As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
(¥ in Lacs) [ in Lacs)
12. Other assets
Advances other than Capital Advances
Advance to directors & officers of the company 258 7.03
Advance to Suppliers 24892 2314
FPrepaid Expenses 420 h.93
Advance to Subsidiary h.58 111.63
Other advances 404 35 383.50
|Others
Balance with revenue authorities r.i2 149.02
Interest Receivable - 296
TOTAL T43.34 G88.35
13A. Share Capital
a. Authorised
16,500,000 Eguity Shares shares of 10 each 1,650.00 1.650.00
3,500,000 Preference Shares of £10 each 350.00 350.00
TOTAL 2,000.00 2,000.00
{b. 1ssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
11.944 000 Equity Shares shares of £10 each 1,194 40 1.194.40
TOTAL 1,194.40 1,194.40
c. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding :
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 119.44 107.50
Add - Number of shares issued during the year - 11.94
Less . Mumber of shares bought back during the year - -
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 119.44 119.44

[repayment of capital

d. The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and

The Company has only class of equity shares having par value of €10/~ per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one wote per
share. Dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the shareholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

. % Holding % Holding
e. Shareholders holding more than 5% shares Sh held {No.) | S held (No,)
i 12.49% 17.34%
1 s Dy 14,91 523 20,71.523
16.19% 16. 19%
2. Sheetal Dugar
s 79,33 424 19.33.424
3. ¥MS Finance Private Limited 15.99% 15.99%
{Formerly Pyramid Sales Private Limited) 19,10,122 19,10 122
: : i 10.38% 10.38%
4. Loka Properties Private Limited
P 12,39 405 12,39 405
) =i 7.71% T.71%
5. Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 921275 931235
f. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters :
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 iz as follows:
T
Name of the promoter Shares held (No.) | % of total shares (:::1!:1?
the year
Sheetal Dugar 19.33. 424 16.19 ] 0.00%
YMS Finance Private Lid 19 10,122 15991 0.00%
Vinod Dugar 14,91.&}_}23 12.49 ] 4.856%
Loka Propedies Private Lid 12,39 405 10.38 | 0.00%
Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 921 225 7.71] 0.00%
Ankur Construction Private Lid 3,75 000 3.14 ] 0.00%
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Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
%

Change

MName of the promoter Shares held (No.) % of total shares daiving

the year
Sheetal Dugar 19 33,424 16.19 | 0.00%
YMS Finance Private Lid 19,10.122 15.99 1 9.33%
Winod Dugar 20.71.523 17.34 | 0.00%
Loka Properties Private Lid 12,39, 405 10035 | 0.00%
Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 9.21.225 7.71] 0.00%
Ankur Construction Private Lid 3.75.000 3.14 | 0.00%

Q. Share Reserved for issue:-

Mo Equity Shares hawe been resened for issue under option & contracts/commitments for sale of shares/ disinvestment as at

Balance Sheet date.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
(¥ in Lacs} (T in Lacs)
13B. Other equity
Other equity consist of the following:
(a) Capital Resene 15250 152.50
(b} Secunties Premium 486.56 436.56
(c) Capital Redemption Resene 264 40 264 .40
(d) Retained Earmnings 3. 387 .66 2 943.35
(e) Transfer from Other comprehensive income 5383 5.64
(f) Equity instrumenis through other comprehensive income 373.29 154.05
TOTAL 4,718.24 4,006.53
*Refer staiement of changes in equity for movement during the year.
14. Borrowings
Loan from other than related parties
From other parties {Unsecured) (refer note no:38) 200.00 200,00
TOTAL 200.00 200.00
15. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Retirement benefits 300.91 268 52
TOTAL 300.91 268.52
16. Borrowings
Loan from other than related parties
HDFC Car Loan (Secured by hypothication of Car) 1.05 20
Working Capital Loan from bank (Secured, repayable on demand) 356.67 24504
[For Working Capital Purpose. Secured by personal guarantee of directors and
maortaged by deposit of title deeds and hypothecation on stocks & debtors. The
applicable Interest rate is Repo Rate plus 3.00% ]
TOTAL 357.72 248.31
17. Trade Pavables
(Unsecured, considered good)
To Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 17.18 2969
To others 30 62666
TOTAL 20.19 656.35
Trade Payables:-
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
EARCA . Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3yea H;r;:;n Total
Trade Payables
MSME" 17.18 - - 17.18
Oithars 73.0 3 = 73.04
Disputed Dues-MEME - - - -
Dlis puted Dues-Cihers - - -
*MSME 35 per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpases Denslopment Act, 2005,
Ageing for rade payables cutstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Outstanding for following pericds from due date of ent
i Lessthan 1 year 12years |23 years “g‘:efi" Total
Trade Fayables
MEME* 2060 - - = 2965
Others 324.15 251 E - | E26EE
Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - -
Dizputed Dluss-Cthers - - - -
*MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Desvelopment Act, 2008,
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As at As at
Particulars st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
¥ in Lacs) ¥ in Lacs)
18. Other current Liabilities
Revenue received in advance
Advances from customers 38037 608 85
Other Advances
Advance from other than related party 222 319
Others
Statutory liabilities 106.12 41.93
Advance from Subsidiary - -
Other Payables 168.58 190.66
TOTAL 657.29 B44.62
19, Provisions
Provision for employee benfits
Retirement benedfits 7 a87.07
TOTAL - 87.07
20, Current Tax Liabilities {net)
Provision for Income Tax 303.83 374.00
Less - Advance Income Tax & TDS 275 80 263 87
TOTAL 28.13 12013
|21A. Revenue from operations
Gross Revenue from sale of Products and semnvices® 2.025.00 1,907 90
Sale of Senices 459 40 462 .78
Other operating Revenue
Sale of Manufacturing WWaste 1.24 560
TOTAL 2,485.64 2,376.38
* Net of sales returns and damaged stocks.
1B. Gross Revenue from sale of Products and services®
Sale of Goods (Cigarettes)
- Sale of manufactured goods -
- Domestic 582 11 525.68
- Export 1,402 33 1,358.70
- Sale of stock in trade {Agarbatti & Match Box ) 40.56 23.52
TOTAL 2,025.00 1,807.80
22, Other Income
Interest income 477.63 411972
Interest on Income Tax Refund 5 779
Sundry balances [/ ligbilities written back (net) 3476 6.37
Foreign currency fluctuation gain 1115 11.29
COther receipts 31.55 2.02
TOTAL 530.24 439.19
23. Cost of Material Consumed during the year
QOpening Stock of Raw Material 309.94 181.21
Add: Purchase of Raw Material 649 69 1,230.00
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Material 255.76 308 94
Consumption J03.87 1,101.36
124. Purchase of stock in trade
Match Boxes Agarbati 114.39 17.01
TOTAL 114.59 17.01
25. Change in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade
QOpening Stock of
- Finished goods 401.35 221
- Stock - in - trade 1.90 5.63
Total {a) 403 25 57 84
Closing Stock of
- Finished goods 67.49 40135
- Wip - -
- Stock - in - trade 3761 1.80
Total {b) 105.10 403 24
{Increase) ! Decrease in inventories (a-b) 29815 {345.41)
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As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
€ in Lacs) ¥ in Lacs)
26. Employee benefits expense
Salaries , wages, bonus, allowances, etc 23372 24807
Contribution to provident and other fund 2225 24 96
Staff welfare expenses 1.89 3.39
Provision for Gratuity 3415 3678
TOTAL 292.01 313.20
27. Finance cosis
Interest paid 1533 23.52
Interest paid against Security Deposits 1.20 1.75
Frocessing Fees 6:55 -
Commission on LC 021 -
Finance Charges .83 1.75
TOTAL 2412 27.02
28. Other Expenses
a. Manufacturing expenses : _
Stores and spares consumed 28.81 7929
Fower and fuel consumed 5T 85 65.50
Machine repairs 2173 13.56
Inward freight coolie cartage and other expenses 50.64 4693
Total {a) 219.03 205.28
b. Administration expenses ;
Loss on Transit - 2.57
Fates and Taxes 1.63 5.81
Building Repairs 7019 45 24
Other Maintenance-Office 1.36 1.39
Vehicle maintenance expenses 522 2.84
Insurance Premium 487 4 58
Sundry balances / liabilities written off (net) 4380 7.45
Travelling and conveyance 12.55 1.05
Postage, telegraph and telephones 270 388
Printing and stationery 047 0.36
Legal & Frofessional Charges 3114 3354
Electricity charges 822 8.41
Land revenue and municipal taxes (net) 0.26 -
Contribution to CSR Activities 2.00 -
Miscellaneous expenses 56.34 26.44
Auditors® remuneration -
- Audit fee 1.50 1.20
- Reimbursement of Audit exp o001 -
- Tax audit fee 0.50 0.25
Total (b) 209.76 145.01
c. Selling and distribution expenses :
Advertisement and publicity expenses 209 219
Distribution Expenses & Sales Promotion Expenses 74.64 43.90
Qutward freight and forwarding charges 25193 191.47
Brokerage, commission and discounts 19.05 15.71
Total (c) J47.71 258.27
Total {a+bh+c) 776.50 G608.56
29, Income fax Expenses
A, Amount recognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Income tax for the Year - -
Current tax 8883 20500
Total current tax 98.93 205.00
Deferred tax
Defemred tax for the Year {22.59) (25700
Adjustment/icredit) related fo pravious vear - Net - -
Total deferred tax (22.59) {25.70)
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As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
(€ in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
30. Additional Notes to the Financial Statements
Components of Defined Benefit Cost
Current Sendce Cost ae2 1110
Past Semice Cost - -
[Gain)/Loss on Settiements - -
Reimbursement Senice Cost - -
Total Service Cost 8.62 11.10
Interest Expense on DBO 24 .53 25.68
Interest (Income) on Plan Assets - -
Interest (Income) on Reimbursement Rights - -
Interest Expense on (Asset Ceiling) / Onerous Liability - -
Total Met Interest Cost 24.53 25.68
Reimbursement of Other Long Term Benefits - -
Defined Benefit Cost included inP & L 34.15 36.78
Remeasurements - Due to Demographic Assumptions - -
Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions (1.99) 1.34
Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjusments (46.19) (21.53)
(Retum) on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income) - -
(Retum} on Reimbursement Rights - -
Changes in Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liabilty - -
Total Remeasurements in OCI (48.18) {20.19)|
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L and OCI {14.03)] 16.59 i
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31 In the opinion of the Board the current assets, loans and advances are not less than the stated value if
realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities are adequate. There are no
contingent liabilities except stated, as informad by the management.

32. The Business of the company falls under a single segment i.e. Manufacturing of Cigarette and Smoking
Mixture. In view of the general classification notified by Central Government in exercise of powers conferred
u/s 129 of Companies Act, 2013for companies operating in single segment, the disclosure requirement as
per Indian Accounting Standard - 108 on "Operating Segment” are not applicable to the company. The
company's business is mainly concentrated in similar geographical, political and economic conditions;
hence disclosure for geographical segment is also not reguired.

33 Earnings Per Share: -

(% in Lacs)
Earnings per share is computed as under:- 2021-22 202021
Profit /{Loss)after tax available for equity shareholders {A) 444 28 626.91
VWeighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos_ )(B) 1,19,44,000 1,07 56,542
Face value per equity share %) 10/- 10/-
Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B) %) 372 5.85

34 CSR Expenditure

Total expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities during the year ended March
3, 2022 is ¥ 8,00,000/~ (during the year ended March 31, 2021 is ¥ Nil). The Company’s CSR activities
primarily focuses on programs that promote education.

(¥ in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) | Amountrequired to be spent by the 7592 -
Company during the year
b} | Amount of expenditure incurred on purpose 5.00
other than construction/ acquisition of any
asset
c) Excess spend of prior years set off during -
the year
d) Shortfall at the end of the year [(d}=(a)-(b}- - -
(c)]
2] Total of previous years shortfall - -
f) Feason for shortfall MNA NA
35, Disclosure on Financial Ratios:
Ratio | Measure Methodology 2021.22 | 2020.21 % SiRasan.or
Change variance
Decrease in
trade
a) Current ratio Chnantassalsovarcument | gog 318 | 66.15% | Payables due
liahilities to less
procurement
at year end
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MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(CONTD.)

over average inventory

b) Debt equity ratio shareholders' equity 0.03 0.04 -12.04% -
Reduction in
c) Debt service EBIT due &
: EBIT over current debt 2.87 4.41 -34.95% increase in
coverage ratio :
Haw Material
Cost
Due to
decrease in
d) Return on equity % | ~/*1 Over total average 8.00% | 1372% | -41.71% | , Froft&
equity increase in
average
equity
: Revenue from operations
E}Tﬁde re;.ewables over average trade 472 h.51 -14.37% -
e receivables
Due to
increase in
adjusted
; expenses
Dusdapojates | Adpeec oporses et | ses | 315 | seosw | and
9 pay decrease in
average
trade
payahles
g) Met capital turnover | Revenue from operations
ratio over working capital 0.51 St -8 28 %
Due to
h) Net profit % Net profit over revenue 14.73% | 22.34% | -34.05% rg'f;ﬁzr'gl
cost
Due to
i) EBITDA % EBITDA over revenue 19.02% | 31.32% | “39.28% |G
raw material
cost
Due to
: increase in
JEBIT % EBIT over revenue 19.02% | 31.32% | -39.28% Faw fadork
cost
Due to
k) Return on capital PBIT over average capital increase in
employed % employed L %, | A5 % raw material
cost
l)Stock Turnover Ratio | ~2venue from operations 4.04 429 | -600% .

36. Post-Employment Benefits
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 of India, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined
retirement benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible employees. Liabilities with regard to such
Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation and are charged to revenue in the period determined.

The following tables seis out the status of the benefit plan as per actuarial valuation as on March 31, 2022
and as recognized in the financial statements in respect of employee benefit schemes:
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(Amt. in ¥)

A. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars

Financial Year Ending
31/03/2021

Financial Year
Ending 31/03/2022

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of year

36,679,634

35,559,161

Current Service Cost

1,110,320

961,674

Past Service Cost

{(Gain) / Loss on setflements

Interest Expense

2,567 574

2,453 582

Benefit Payments from Plan Assels

Benefit Payments from Employer

(2,779,467)

(3.983.552)

Seftlement Paymenis from Flan Assets

Setftlement Payments from Employer

Other (Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)

Increase / (Decrease) due to effect of any business
combination / divasture / transfer)

Increase / (Decrease} due fo Plan combination

Remeasurements - Due fo Demographic Assumptions

Remeasurements - Due fo Financial Assumptions

134,012

(199,245)

Remeasurements - Due fo Expenence Adjustments

(2.152,912)

(4,618,832)

Defined Benefit Obligation at end of year

35,559,161

30,172,986

Discount Rate

6.90%

7.10%

Salary Escalation Rate

6.00% p.a.

6.00% p.a.

B. Change in Fair Value of Plan Assefs

Particulars

Financial Year Ending
3032021

Financial Year
Ending 31/03/2022

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year

Interest Income

Employer Contributions

Employer Direct Benefit Payments

Employer Direct Settlement Payments

e —

2,779,467

3,983.552

Benefit Payments from Plan Assets

EBenefit Payments from Employer

(2,779,467)

(3.983552)

Settlement Payments from Plan Assets

Settlement Payments from Employer

Other (Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)

ncrease / (Decrease) due to effect of any business

Increase / (Decrease) due to Plan combination

Remeasurements - Return on Assets

{Excluding Interest Income)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of year

Weighted Average Asset Allocations at the year end

Equities
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Bonds - -
Gilts - -
Insurance Policies - -
Total - -
We understand that Liability is not funded
C. Components of Defined Benefit Cost
Particulars Financial ?%ngim - ﬁﬁl;;;??:*]lcml Year
Current Sarvice Cost 1.110.3240 961,874
Past Service Cost - -
(Gain) / Loss on Settlements - -
Reimbursement Service Cost - -
Total Service Cost 1,110,320 961,874
Interest Expense on DBO 2,567 574 2,453 532
Interest (Income) on Plan Assats - -
Interest (Income) on Reimbursement Rights - -
Interest Expense on (Asset Ceiling) / Onerous Liability - -
Total Net Interest Cost 2,567,574 2,453,532
.E;ﬁl‘bursement of Other Long Term Benefits - ¥ -
Defined Benefit Cost includedin P & L 3,677,894 3,415,456
Remeasurements - Due to Demographic Assumptions - -
Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions 134,012 {199,245)
Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments (2,152,912) {4,618,632)
(Return) on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income) - -
_[-Return} on Reimbursement Rights - -
Changes in Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liability - -
Total Remea'sureme;rnl_tf in OCl o (2,018,900) | {4,813,{}}3
E:::t:al Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L and 1,658,994 (1,402,621)
Discount Rate 5.90% 7.10%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%
D. Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position
P e e
Defined Benefit Obligation 35,559 161 30,172,988
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Funded Status 35,559,161 30,172,938
Effect of Asset Ceilling / Onerous Liability - -
Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) 35,559,161 30,172,988
E. Net Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset)reconciliation
Particulars Financial Tgﬁd&;g Enﬁﬁ;ﬂgl;{:lpl_ Year
PAGE NO : 86
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::I':;‘ Pefmed Benefit Liability/(Asset) at beginning of 36,679,634 35,559,161
Defined Benefit Cost includedin P & L 3,677,894 3,415,456
Total Remeasurements included in OC| (2,018,900) {4,818,077)
Net Transfer In /(Out) (Including the effect of any
business combination / divesture)
Amount recognized due to Plan Combinations
Employer Coniributions
Employer Direct Benefit Payments (2,779, 467T) (3,983,552)
Employer Direct Settlement Payments
Credit to Reimbursements
Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) at end of year 35,559,161 30,172,538
Summary of Financial & Demographic Assumptions
Valuation Date
Particulars :
310372021 310312022
Discount Rate 6.90% 7.10%
Salary Escalation - First 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%
Salary Escalation - After 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%
Expected Rate of Retum on Plan Assels MIA N/A
Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Table Ukimate
Disability Hate 5% of Mortality Rate | 5% of Mortality Rate
Withdrawal Rate” As per table below As per table below
Relirement Age 58 & 60 Years h8 & 60Years
Average Future Service 7.56 8.42
*Withdrawal rates, based on age (per annum)
Particulars As on 31/03/2021 As on 31/03/2022
Upto 25 Years 500 % 8.00 %
26 to 30 Years 700 % 700 %
31 to 35 Years 600 % 6.00 %
36 to 40 Years 5.00 % 2.00 %
41 to 45 Years 400 % 4.00 %
46 to 50 Years 3.00 % 3.00 %
571 to 53 Years 200 % 2.00 %
Above 56 Years 1.00 % 1.00 %
35. Related party disclosures:-
(&) Enterprises where control exists (wholly owned subsidiaries): -
S1. No. Name Of Enterprise Sl No Name Of Enterprise
1 NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited 2 NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
3 NTCIL Realty Private Limited 4 NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited

(B} Other related parties with whom the company had transactions:
{i). Key Management Personnel and their relatives: -

S1.No. Name Designation /Relationship
1 Upmanyu Pathak Managing Director {upto 22.05.2021)
2 Priyvawart Jariwala Managing Director {w.e.f 22.05.2021)

{liy. Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel/Major Shareholders/Their Relatives have
Significant Influence: -
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SL.No. Name
1 RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Disclosure of transactions with related parties and outstanding balances: - (Amt. in T)
Enterprises over which
. . . KMP & their relatives c e
Particulars KMP and their relatives i aighihcant Subsidiaries
influence
ity | - - 9,26,701
ectricity Income () (—) (7.36.767)
4,48,500 --- -
Remuneration Paid {5.48.548} e (—)
— 28.38,00,000 216,04 130
& & Adv i S
oan ance given (=) (=) (2.64.93.609)
— 67,00,000 3,23,68 361
Loan & Advance given refund (—) (=) {1:%&55.954}
interest Income - 2233089 2
(=) ()
Advance given against Salary o T o
() (=) ()
Advance given against Salary 4,00,000 o e
adjusted (90,000) () ()
Balances outstanding:
Advance given against Salary [4-9‘}-[][]_‘]; (__; (':';
Advance given T T 63, Tt
S (=) (—) | (1,11,63345)
S =0 1,586,805
Trade Receivable o
() (=) (=)
Mote: - (i} Previous year figures have been given in brackets.

(ii) As the liability of gratuity and compensated absence are provided on actuarial basis for the
company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the directors are not ascertainable and therefore not
included in the above

{iii} Related party relationships are identified by the company on the basis of available information.

38. A suit has been filed against the company in the year 1999 for recovery of ¥ 2,00,00,000/- along with
interest which is still pending before the Hon'ble High Court, Kolkata. The company disputes the claim of the
party and as the matter is sub-judice no provision for interest has been made.

39. In the Year 2018-19, in the matter of SCN no C.No. V-SEIZURE (15) S0CE/CAL/-INADJN/97/131-143 Dated
21.04.1997 an assessment order-in-eriginal no. 55/COMMR/CGST & CX KOL/MNORTH/2018-19 dated
15.03.2019 was passed by the Commissioner of CGST & CX partially confirming the duty demand of ¥
31,31,81,560/- and Penalty of ¥ 1,35,60,804/-. Your Company's appeal before CESTAT, Kolkata is pending
and is of view that its defense in grounds of appeal are factually correct and strong enough to get favorable
order from appeal authority.

40. In 2015 a group of minority shareholders had filed a suit against the company in the court of Learned Fourth
Civil Judge (Junior Division) at Sealdah, West Bengal and Learnad third Civil Judge at Barasat. West

Bengal Since the matter is subjudice in the court, any disclosures given at this moment would be
prejudicial to the interest of the company and that of the stakeholders.
41. Contingent liabilities & Guarantee given:
(% in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31/03/2022 | As at 31/03/2021
a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 144.54 14454
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b} Disputed Liabilities relating to Central Excise Demand 3267 62 3267 62
42. Foreign exchange earnings and ocutgo:
a) Earnings in foreign exchange:
(¥ in Lacs)
S Year Ended Year Ended
EEsCHption 311032022 310312021
F.0.B Value of Export 1162.16 1211.42
b) Outgo in foreign exchange:
(¥ in Lacs)
TS Year Ended Year Ended
Description 31/03/2022 31/03/2021
-Machines & Raw materials 62.36 41516
ot : L . itk oib
43. The figures of previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever considered necessary.

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

For R. RAMPURIA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 325211E

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director

CA Rajendra Rampuria

Partner

Membership No. 105771

Place: Kolkata Prem Chand Khater
Date: The 30™ day of May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer
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Director

Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To,
The Members of
NTC Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of NTC Industries Limited (“the Company™)
and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consoclidated Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS™)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2022, the consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, conselidated changes in equity
and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act {SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chariered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matiers described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

The Group is involved in indirect tax and other
litigations ('litigations’) that are pending with different

51, Key Audit Matters Auditor's Response
No
1 Litigations and claims provisions and | Our key procedures included, but not limited to, the
contingent liabilities following:
Refer note 40 to 44 to the consolidated financial a) Assessed the appropriateness of the
statements. Group's accounting policies relating fo
provisions and contingent liability by

comparing with the applicable acceunting
standards;

statutory authorities. b) Assessed the Group's process and the
underlying controls for identification of the
The level of management judgement associated pending litigations and completeness for
with determining the need for, and the gquantum of, financial reporting and also for monitoring of
provisions for any liabilities arising from these significant developments in relation to such
litigations is considered to be high. This judgement pending litigations;
is dependent on a number of significant c) Assessed the Group’s assumptions and
assumptions and assessments which involves estimates in respect of litigations, including
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interpreting - the wvarious applicable rules,
regulations, practices and considering precedents in
the various jurisdictions.

This matter is considered as a key audit matter, in
view of the uncertainty regarding the outcome of
these litigations, the significance of the amounts
involved  amd the subjectivity involved in

the liabilites or provisions recognized or
contingent liabilities disclosed in  the
consolidated financial statements. This
involved assessing the probability of an
unfavourable outcome of a given proceeding
and the reliability of estimates of related
amounts;

management’s judgement as to whether the amount d} Performed substantive procedures on the

should be recognized as a provision or only underlying calculations supporiing the

disclosed as contingent liability in the consclidated provisions recorded;

financial statements. e) Assessed the management's conclusions
through wunderstanding relevant judicial

The Group has material uncertain tax positions precedents in similar cases and the

including matters under dispute which involves applicable rules and regulations;

significant judgment to determine the possible f) Engaged subject matter specialisis to gain

outcome of these disputes.

an understanding of the current status of

litigations and monitored changes in the
disputes, if any, through discussions with the
management and by reading external advice
received by the Group, where relevant, to
validate managements conclusions; and

q) Assessed the appropriateness of the
Group's description of the accounting policy,
disclosures related to litigations and whether
these are adequately presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’'s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consclidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance, consclidated total comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Accounting Standards and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also :

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such confrols.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonahbleness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, basaed on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidataed financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consoclidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and
timing of the audit significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
maost significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
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in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of ¥
2923 82 lacs as at 31st March, 2022, total revenues of ¥ 880.65 lacs and net cash outflow amounting to ¥ 6.18 lacs
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statemeants
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in =0 far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our-gpinion on the consoclidated financial statements above and ouwr report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the 'Other Matter paragraph we give in the "Annexure A" a
statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.

c¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consclidated financial statements comply with the AS specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

fi  With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B® which is based on the auditor's
reports of the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Qur report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of
those companies, for reasons stated therein.

g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amendad :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

h) With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and fo the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us :
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i. The consolidated financial statements disclose impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group. Refer note 40 to 44 of the consolidated financial statement.

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foresesable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Group.

iv. {a)  The managemeant has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b} The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
(c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasconable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement; and

v.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For R RAMPURIA & COMPANY,
Chartered Accountants
FEN: 325211E

(CA Rajendra Rampuria)
{Partner)
Membership Number: 108771

Date: 30/05/2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 2210877 1AJXRLZG196
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

For Reporting on Consolidated Financial Statements:

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Heolding Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief and
based on the consideration of report of respective auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India, we
state that:

®x®i. -~ There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report on Companies
{Auditors Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements.

For R RAMPURIA & COMPANY,
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 325211E

(CA Rajendra Rampuria)
(Partner)
Membership Mumber: 108771

Date: 30/05/2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 2210877 1AJXELZ6196
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consclidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
31st March, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NTC Industries
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, as of that data.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Boards of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial confrols over financial reporting of the Parent,
its subsidiary companies, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internmal Financial Conftrols Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Mote™) issued by ICAl and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal confrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respacts, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

Other Matters

COur aforesaid report under Section 143(3}(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial confrols over financial reporting insofar as it relates to four subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated
in India.

For R RAMPURIA & COMPANY,
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 326211E

(CA Rajendra Rampuria)
(Fartner)
Membership Number: 108771

Date: 30/057/2022

Place: Kolkata
UDIN; 221087 7T1AJXRLZ6196
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2022

= o As at Asat
No. Particulars No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(¥ in Lacs) (€ in Lacs]|
A | ASSETS
"1, Mon-current assets
{@)-. Property, Plant and Equipment 44 2,881 2.805.83
b} Capital work-in-progress 4B 22536 440.73
(g} Cther intangible Assets 4z 0.7 0.84
(d) Fimancial asseis
{i)  lmvestments 5 433 44 214.20
(g} Deferrad tax assets (net) & 44 57 6718
(fi Cther mnon-current assets T 3568.62 3508.18
Total non-current assets g&i.ﬂi 3.8597.12
(2. Current assets
(@} Imentones a2 440 857 Te0. T8
(o) Financial Assets
(i} Trade Receiables ] 625,53 T51.80
(it} Cash and cash equivalents 10 13272 GE5.64
fiii} Loans 11 4,450.50: 3.510.18
fiv) Cthers 12 65.34 -
{c} Other cument assets 13 BO03.21 68021
Total current assets 6,518.86 5. 408.73
Total assets 10,470.69 10,205 85
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(28} Egquity share capital 144 1,194.40 1,184.40
(b} DOther equity 148 7.052.24 5,804 83
Total equity 8,257 64 7,085.03
Z. Mon-current liabilities
{2} Financial Liabilitias
(i} Bormowings 15 20000 20000
B} Provisions 16 300,21 268.52
Total non-current liabilities 8,758.55 7,557.55
3. Current liabilities
(2] Financial liakilities
(i} Bomowings 17 ATEET 245.31
(i} Trade Payables 18
{a) Total Dutstanding dues of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 17.18 20.68
(b} Total Outstanding dues of Creditors Others Than Micro, Small 154.05 Ti7.24
% Medium Enterprises
(&) Other cument liabilities 18 1.071.78 1,484 38
{c} Prowvisions 20 - ar.o7
{d} Cumrent Tax Liabilities {Net) 21 20.55 174153
Total current liabilities 1,712.14 2, 748.30
Total eguity and liabilities 10.470.6% 1&305._8.5-
The accompanying notes 1 to 46 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

A5 perour report of even date attached

For R. RAMPURIA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration Mo. 325211E

CA RAJENDRA RAMPURIA
Partner
Membership No. 108771

Place : Kolkata.
Date : 30.05.2022
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For and on behalf of the Board

Priyawart Jariwala Miraj Sinha
Managing Director Director
Prem Chand Khator Sunil Kumar Varma

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT AND LOSS

for the year ended 31st March 2022

1 Note Year ended| Year ended
'"D_ Particulars No. March 31, 2022 Hamll 31, 2021
(Fin L (¥ in Lacs)
| Rewenue From Operations 28 3. 31248 3,058.83
1] Dther income 23 584.07 438.84
in Total Income [I+11) 3,896.53 3, 506.57
v EXFENSES
Cost of materials consumed 29 T03.87 1,101.386
Purchases of stock-in-Trada 25 114.38 17.01
Changes in inventories of finised goods, Stock-in-Trade & work-in-progress 28 28815 [345.41)
Excise Duty 182 51 12342
Employes benefits expense 27 32388 348.00
Finance cosis 28 28.51 T3.11
Depreciation 203.82 180. 898
Dither expenses 28 BEE. 18 731.42
Total Expenses 2.738.12 2 30259
') ProfitiLoss) before exceptional items and taxes (IIIHV) 1,158.41 1,203.98
Wi Add J (Less) : Exceptional items - -
Wil Profit{Loss} before Tax {W-VI) 1.158.41 1,203.98
Vil Tax expenses :
{z) Cumrent tax 0 250,83 305.13
{b) Defemed tax 30 22.58 25.70
(2] Tax adjustments for esdier years {18:30) G8.43
4 Profit' (loss) for the period after Tax (PAT) 901.19 803.67
X Other Comprehensive Income
a. Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
(i} Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 31 43.18 20.18
{ii} Changes in fair value of equity Instruments through other
Comprehensive Income 218.24 (2331
b. Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to - -
profit or loss
Total other compre hensive income {a+b) 2E7.42 [3.12)
Xl Total comprehensive income for the year {IX+X) 1,168.61 800.55
xn Earnings per share: - Basic/Diluted {in T} 7.55 T.4T
The accompanying notes 1 to 46 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For R. RAMPURIA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountanis
Firm registration Mo. 325211E

CA RAJENDRA RAMPURIA
Partner
Membership No. 108771

Plage : Kolkata.

Date

: 30.05.2022
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For and on behalf of the Board

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director

Niraj Sinha
Director

Sunil Kumar Varma
Company Secretary

Prem Chand Khator
Chief Financial Officer

PAGE NO :

95



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
for the year ended 31st March 2022

For the Year ended For the Year ended
SLNo. Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(€ in Lacs) (€ in Lacs)
A. |Cash flow from operating acfivities :
Met profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 1-.15&-“ 1,203.99
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 203.82 190 66
Unrealised Forex Gain 298 -
Interast paid 2087 69.55
Interest received 1499 31) (41217}
Provision of Employee's retirement & curment benefils 3413 [ (237 49)] 36.78 [ (115.17)
Operating profit before working capital changes 920,92 1,088.82
(increase) /! Decrease in inventories 35022 (474.95)
(increase) / Decrease in frade and other receivables T0.66 ’ (&BE.QB}F
Increase / (Decrease) in frade payables & ofher payables {BﬂDESL' (459.37)| 260 60 (781.36)
Cazh generated from operafions 461.55 307.46
Less: Direct taxes (paid) / refunds including interest (met) ! {149 75 (137.53)
Net cash generated/{used) from operating activities 311.80 169.93
E. |Cash flow from investing activities :
Loan Repaid by Body Cormporate 2 113.00 =
Increasef{decrease) in Fixed Assetis & CWIP (g 4004 (317 .36)
Loan Given to Body Corporate (2.983.00) 468.73
Interest received 348.40 412 .17
Met cash from investing activities (591.00) 141.53
C. |Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds from issue of shares - B605.96
Proceeds [ (repayment) of long term bormowings = (250.85)
Proceeds ! (repayment) of short term borrowings (232.86) (1.27)
Interest paid EED_E?_']‘ : (69.55)
Met cash generated/{used) in financing activities {253.72)] 264,28
Met increasei(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (i (232.92) 595.74
Cash and cash equivalents -Opening balance 665.64 69.90
Cash and cash equivalents -Closing balance 132.72 665.64
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE:
Balances with bank 13208 665.02
Cash on hand .64 0.62
132,72 665.64
As per our report of even date atlached

For R. RAMPURIA & COMPANY
Chartered Accounfants
Firm registration No. 325211E

CA RAJENDRA RAMPURIA

Partner

Membership No. 108771

Place : Kolkata.
Date : 30.05.2022
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For and on behalf of the Board

Priyawart Jariwala
Managing Director

Prem Chand Khator
Chief Financial Officer

Niraj Sinha
Direcior

Sunil Kumar Varma

Company Secretary
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements of "NTC Industries Limited™ ("the Company”™) are for the year ended 31st
March, 2022.

The Company is a domestic public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office
at 149, B.T. Road, Kamarhati, Kolkata - 700058. The Company's shares are listed and traded on the Bombay Stock
Exchange Lid. (BSE) and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE). The company is engaged in business of
manufacturing of Cigarette and Smoking Mixture.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Companies Act”), as applicable and guidelines issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India {"SEBI"). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April, 2017

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, except for
new accounting standards adopted by the Company.

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective April 1, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to the existing standards vide notification G.5.R 255(E) Dated:
23rd March, 2022. The effect of those amendments is not material.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain items that
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability.

Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CF5S) include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
together with the share of the total comprehensive income of joint ventures and associates. Subsidiaries are entities
controlled by the Group.

Control, significant influence and joint control is assessed annually with reference to the voting power (usually
arising from equity shareholdings and potential voting rights) and other rights (usually contractual) enjoyed by the
Group in its capacity as an investor.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries are aggregated and consolidated, line by line, fram the
date confrol is acquired by any Group entity to the date it ceases. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are atiributed to the Group as owners and to the non-controlling interests. The Group
presents the non-controlling interests in the Balance Sheet within equity, separately from the equity of the Group as
owners. The excess of the Group’'s investment in a subsidiary over its share in the net worth of such subsidiary. on
the date control is acquired is treated as goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital reserve in the CES.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions betwesen
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Fair Value Measurement

The preparation of financial statemeants in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle
and-ather criteria set out in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial
Statements based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash eqguivalents.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP.

Cost is inclusive of inward freight, duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. Expenses
capitalised also include applicable borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All up gradation / enhancements are
charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Depreciation of these assets commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on commissioning. Iltems of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets
after commissioning, less its residual value, over their useful lives as pacified in Schedule |l of the Companies Act,
2013 on a straight line basis. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment of the Company are as follows:

Plant, Property & Equipment Useful life
Vehicles 2 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipment 5-15 years
Computer 3 years
Plant and Equipment 16 years
Factory Building 30 years

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are capitalised
upon acquisition and measured initially at cost comprising the purchase price (including import duties and non-
refundable taxes) and directly attributable costs to prepare the asset for its intended use.

The carrying value of intangible assets includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of intangible
assels recognised as at 15t April, 2016 measurad as per the previous GAAP.

The useful life of an intangible asset is considered finite due to the likelihood of technical, techmnological
obsolescence (e.g., compuier software, design, prototypes). Hence Intangible assets that have finite lives are
amortized over their estimated useful lives by the straight-line method unless it is practical to reliably determine the
pattern of benefits arising from the asset.

All intangible assets are tested for impairment. Amortization expenses and impairment losses and reversal of
impairment losses are taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Thus, after initial recognition, an intangible asset.is
carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and / or impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually to determine if a reset of such useful life is required for
azsets with finite lives.
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Plant, Property & Equipment Useful life
Pavroll Software 5 years

Impairment of Assets

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent, the carrying amount of assets or cash generating units exceed
their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash
generating unit and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Impairment losses recognised in prior years are
reversed when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. Such
reversals are recognised as an increase in carrying amounts of assets to the extent that it does not exceed the
carrying amounts that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised in previous years.

Inventories

) Raw Materials: At lower of weighted average cost or net realisable value.
Work in progress: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
} Finished Goods and Stock in trade: At lower of cost or net realisable value.
) Stores and Spares, Packing: At lower of Weighted average cost or net realisable value

g T s i

Foreign Currency Transactions
The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date. Gains/
losses arising on settlement as also on translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
Financial Assets

Recognition: Financial assets include Investments, Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents. Such assets are
initially recognised at transaction price when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The transaction
price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being fair valued through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification: Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired. The subseguent measurement of financial assets depends on such
classification.

Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

{d} amortized cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from payments
of principal and/ or interest.

(e) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), where the financial assets are
held not only for collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the
sale of such assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in other comprehensive income.

(f) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assets are managed in accordance with an approved
investment strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value of such assets. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents etc. are classified for measurement at amortised cost while
investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular investments in equity
instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at initial
recognition may be made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

Impairment: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial

assets) such as trade receivables, held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available
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without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit
quality of thefinancial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective
contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the fiability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation is dizcharged, cancelled and on expiry.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services
rendered, net of returns and discounts to customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise and other duties which the Company pays as a principal, but
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as sales tax and value added tax. Revenue from the sale
of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer,
which is mainly upon delivery, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the consideration is
probable.

Revenue from services is recognised in the periods in which the services are rendered to the customer except
otherwise stated.

Rental Income {exclusive of Taxes) from assets given on licence is recognised on rendering of services to tenants.
This policy i= not applicable for variable rental Income based on turnover of the tenant.

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.
Employee Benefits

c] Short term employee benefits: All employee benefits payable whelly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short-term employes benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and short term
compensated absences, the expected cost of ex-gratia, etc are recognised in the period in which the
employse renders the related services.

d) Post-employment benefits

(iii) Defined Contribution Plan: Employse benefits in the form of Provident fund, employees state
insurance etc. are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the
statements of profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

{iv) Defined Benefit Plan: Employee benefits in the form of gratuity and leave encashment are
considered as defined benefit plan and are provided for on the basis of an independent actuarial
valuation.

Taxes on Income

Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes. Current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss is
provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates and tax laws
enacted during the period along with the Income Computation and disclosure standards, together with any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the
amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are disclosed
separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority.

Currant tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
gither to settle on net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when, as a result of a past event, the Company has a legal or constructive obligation; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated. The amount so recognised is a best estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. In an event when the time
value of money is material, the provision is carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to settle the
obligation.

Contingent Liability

Liabilities which are contingent in nature are not provided for in the accounts and the same are separately disclosed
by way of nofes to accounts.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the Net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Prior Period Adjustments

Adjustment of identifiable items of income and expenditure pertaining to prior period are accounted for as prior
periods adjustments.
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3. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liakilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting period end.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

As described in the significant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period.

2. Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it
iz available

3. Actuarial Valuation:

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made through
independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income.
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As at As at
Particulars 3st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
{T in Lacs) ® in Lacs)
5. Non-current Investment
Investment in Equity, Trade Investments
Quoted {at Fair Market Value, fully paid)
RDE Realty & Infrastructure Lid. "
{12.60.000 shares of Bs 10 each) St 21420
TOTAL 433.44 214.20
6. Deferred tax assets (net)
Defered tax assets 6716 92 86
Less : Deferred tax liabilties (22 59) (26.70)
TOTAL A4.57 67.16
7. Other assets
Advances other than Capital Advances
Deposit with Excise Authority 29505 299 05
Security Deposits AT 64 60.14
TOTAL 35669 350.19
8. Inventories
{at lower of cost and net realisable value )
Raw matenals (including packling maternals) 26576 309.94
Work-in-prograss - -
Finished goods (manufactured) G67.49 401.35
Stock-in-trade (goods purchased for resale) aF.61 1.90
Stores and Spares 79.71 77.60
TOTAL 440.57 790.79
4. Trade receivables (Current)
(Unsecured, considered good) 626.53 751.90
TOTAL 626.53 751.90
Trade Receivables:-
Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Ageing Amt (¥ in Lacs)
Less than 6 months Ji7 A6
6 months -1 year 48 56
(1) Undizputed Trade receivables — considered good 1-2 years 176.37
2-J years 23.44
More than 3 years -
TOTAL 626.53
Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Particulars in Ami (¥ in Lacs)
Less than 6 months 464 82
& months -1 year 20010
() Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1-2 years 82 48
2-3 years 4.50
More than 3 years -
TOTAL 751.90
10. Cash and cash equivalents
- Balances with bank 100.08 66502
- Fixed Deposits (For lien against guarantees and letter of credit with maturity
period less than 90 days) 32.00 -
- Cash on hand (As cerified by the management) 0.64 0.62
TOTAL 132.72 665.64
11. Loans
Loans to Related parties - Considered good,Unssured
Loan to Body Corporate 2, 791.15 -
Loans to Others then related parties - Considered good,Unseured
Loan to Body Corporate (other than related) 1.669.35 3.510.19
TOTAL 4,450.50 3.510.19
12.0thers financial assets-Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 65.34
TOTAL 65.34
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As at As at
Particulars 3st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
{T in Lacs) % in Lacs)
13. Other Current assets
Advances other than Capital Advances
Advance to directors & officers of the company 2.58 T7.08
Advance to Suppliers 248.92 23.14
Prepaid Expenzes 6.57 8.84
Other advances 46T 42 49917
Others
Balance with revenue authorities fri2 149.02
Interest Receivable - 2.96
TOTAL 803.21 690.21
14A. Share Capital
a. Authorised
16,500,000 Equity Shares shares of ¥10 each 1,650.00 1,650.00
3,500,000 Preference Shares of 10 each 350.00 35000
TOTAL 2,000.00 2,000.00
b. Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
11.944 000 Equity Shares shares of $10 each 1.184 40 1,194 .40
TOTAL 1,194.40 1,194.40
¢. Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding :
Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 119.44 10750
Add : Number of shares issued during the year - 11.94
Less : Number of shares bought back during the year - -
Number of shares outstanding as at the end of the year 119.44 119.44

repayment of capital

d. The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to shares and restrictions on distribution of dividend and

The Company has only class of equity shares having par value of Rs_ 10/~ per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share. Dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of shareholders, except in case of intedm
dividend. In the event of Liquidation, the sharsholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

z %2 Holding *x Holding
e. Shareholders holding more than 5% shares Shares held (No.) | Shares held {No.)
. 12.49% 17.34%
1, Yinod Dugar 14,01,523 30 71 523
16.19% 16. 19%
v o DG 10,33 424 19,33 424
3. ¥YMS Finance Private Limited 15.99% 15.99%
(Formery Pyramid Sales Private Limited) 1910122 19,10, 122
. . . 10.38% 10.33%
4. Loka Properties Private Limited 12.39.405 12.39.405
; - T.71% 7.71%
5. Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 921225 531935
f. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters :
Disclosure of share holding of promoters az at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
% Change
Name of the promoter Shares held {No.) % of total shares |during the
year
Sheetal Dugar 19 33 424 16.19 | - 0.005%
YMS Finance Private Lid 19,10, 122 1599 | 0.00%
Winod Dugar 14,91,523 12,49 | 4.56%
Loka Properies Private Lid 12 39 405 10.38 |  0.00%
Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 921225 7.71 0_00%
Ankur Construction Private Lid 3,759,000 3.14 0_005%
Dizclosure of share holding of promoters a3 at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
% Change
Name of the promoter Shares held {No.) % of total shares |during the
year
Sheetal Dugar 19,33, 424 1619 |  0.00%
Y MS Finance Private Lid 19.10,122 1589 | 933%
Vinod Dugar 20.71.523 17.34 | 0.00%
Loka Properties Private Lid 12 39, 405 1038 ] 0.00%
Khatod Investments & Finance Company Limited 021,225 7.71 0_00%
Ankur Construction Private Lid 3.75.000 3.14 0.00%
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g. Share Reserved for issue:-
Mo Equity Shares have been reserved for issue under option & contracts/commitments for sale of shares/ disinvestment as at
Balance Sheet daie.
As at As at
Particulars Mst March 2022| 31st March 2021
T in Lacs) T in Lacs)
14B. Other equity
Oiher equity consist of the following:
{a) Capital Resene 152 50 152.50
by Securities Premium 42656 486.56
(c) Capital Redemption Reseng 264 40 264.40
(d) Retained Earnings b 732 6T 4 831.48
(g) Transfer from Other comprenensive income 53.82 5.64
(f) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 37329 154.05
TOTAL 7,063.24 5,894.63
*Refer statement of changes in equity for movement during the year.
15. Borrowings
Loan from other than related parties
From other parties (Unsecured) (refer note no:4d) 200.00 200.00
TOTAL 200.00 200.00
16. Provisions
Frovision for employee benefits
Retirement benefits 300.91 26852
TOTAL 300.91 268.52
17. Borrowings
Loan from other than related parties
HDFC Car Loan (Secured by hypothication of Car) 1.05 237
Working capital loan from bank (Secured, repayable on demand) 3rr 52 245 94
[For Working Capital Purpose. Secured by personal guarantee of directors and
mortaged by deposit of fitle deeds and hypothecation on stocks & debtors. The
applicable Interest rate is Repo rate plus 3.00%.]
TOTAL JT8.57 248.31
18. Trade Payables
(Unsecured, considered good)
To Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 1718 2069
To others 154.05 71734
TOTAL 171.23 T47.03
Trade Payables:-
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
| Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Mo
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years | than3 Total
YEArs
Trade Payables
MSME" 17.18 2 - E 17.12
Others 102.00 5205 - -1 15405
Disputed Dues-MSME 8 z - : :
Disputed Duss-Cthers - - - - -
*MSME 3z per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dewelopment Act, 2008
Ageing for trade payables cutstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
| Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Maore
R Less than 1 year 1.2 years 23years | than3 | Total
TETE
Trade Payables
MSME" 20.50 - - - 29.69
Cthars &58.87 B0.47 - - m7za
Disputed Duss-MSME - - - - -
Dlisputed Duss-Cthers - - - - -
“MEME as per the Micro, Small and Medum Enterprises Dewelopment Act, 2006
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As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
{¥ in Lacs) T In Lacs)
19. Other current Liabilities
Revenue received in advance
Advances from customers JB24 610.28%
Other Advances
Advance from other than related party 2.22 319
Others
Statutory liabilities 121.46 51.96
Security Deposit Received-Godown 38014 -
Other Payables 175.56 82832
TOTAL 1,071.79 1,484.36
20. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Retirement benefits - 8707
TOTAL - B87.07
21. Current Tax Liabilities (net)
Provision for Income Tax 556.06 47413
Less - Advance income Tax & TDS 465 51 302 60
TOTAL 90.55 171.53
224, Revenue from operations
Gross Revenue from sale of Products and semvices® 2.025.00 1,907 .90
Sale of Senices 1,286.22 1,153.03
Other operating Revenue
Sale of Manufacturing Waste 1.24 5.69
TOTAL 3,312.46 3,066.63
* Net of sales returns and damaged stocks.
22B. Gross Revenue from sale of Products and services®
Sale of Goods (Cigarettes)
- Sale of manufactured goods :
- Domestic 582.11 52568
- Export 1,402 33 1,358.70
- Sale of stock in trade (Agarbatti & Match Box ) 40.56 23.52
TOTAL 2,025.00 1,907.90
23. Other Income
Interest income 494 31 a1217
interest on Income Tax Refund 3.15 1.79
Sundry balances [/ liabilities written back (net) 34.76 6.37
Foreign currency fluctuation gain 11.15 11.29
Other receipts 35.69 2.32
TOTAL 584.07 439.94
24. Cost of Material Consumed during the year
Opening Stock of Raw Material 305.04 181.21
Add: Purchase of Raw Material 6459.69 1,230.09
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Material 25576 30894
Consumption T03.87 1,101.36
25, Purchase of stock in trade
Match Boxes Agarbati 114.39 17.01
TOTAL 114.389 17.01
26. Change in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade
Opening Stock of
- Finished goods 401.35 5221
- Stock - in - trade 1.80 h63
Total (a) 403.25 57.84
Closing Stock of
- Finished goods 67 .49 401.35
- WiP - -
- Stock - in - trade 37.61 1.90
Total (b) 10510 403.24
(Increase) ! Decrease in inventories (a-b) 298.15 (345.41)
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As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
(T in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
27. Employee benefits expense
Salaries , wages, bonus, allowances, eic 268 30 27829
Contribution to provident and other fund 2318 2581
Staff welfare expenses 3.04 h.13
Provision for Gratuity 3415 3678
TOTAL 328.69 346.00
28. Finance costs
Iinterest paid 19.67 69_55
Interest paid against Security Deposiis 1.20 1.76
Frocessing Fees 6:55 -
Commission on LC 021 -
Finance Charges 088 1.80
TOTAL 28.51 73.11
. Other Expensas
da. Manufacturing expenses :
Stores and spares consumed 85.81 79.29
Fower and fuel consumed 5785 6550
Machine repairs 2173 13.56
inward freight, coolie, cartage and other expenses 50.64 45.93
Total {a) 219.04 205,27
b. Administration expenses :
Loss on Transit - 2.57
Rates and Taxes 223 8.14
Building Repairs 104.82 45.24
Security Senice Charges 12.88 -
Penalty, Interest 001 =
Other Maintenance-Office 1.36 1.39
Vehicle maintenance expenses h.22 2.84
Insurance Premium 999 5.82
Loss of material due to Flood = 715
Sundry balances [ liabilities written off (net} 4.80 745
Travelling and conveyance 1257 1.07
Postage, telegraph and telephones 290 4.05
Printing and stationery 0.47 0.37
Legal & Professional Charges 3581 3554
Electricity charges Ar28 a4
Land revenue and municipal taxes (net) 279 1.48
Contribution to CSR Activties 8.00 -
Miscellansous expenses 56.36 128.69
Auditors” remuneration :
- Audit fee 1.74 1.44
- Reimbursement of Audit exp 0.0 -
- Tax audit fee 0.50 0.25
Total (b) 299.74 267.39
c.5elling and distribution expenses :
Adwertisement and publicity expenses 209 219
Distribution Expenses & Sales Fromotion Expenses 7464 43.90
Qutward freight and forwarding charges 251.93 191.47
Brokerage, commission and discounts 20.74 15.71
Total (c) 349.41 258.27
Total (a+b+c) B868.18 73i1.42
J0. Income tax Expenses
A, Amount recognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Income tax for the Year - -
Current tax 250.83 30513
Total current tax 250.93 305.13
Deferred tax
Deferred tax for the Year {22.59) (25.70)
Adjustment/{credit) related to previous year - Net - -
Total deferred fax (22.59) {25.70}
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As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
@ in Lacs) ¥ in Lacs)

31. Additional Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Current Sendce Cost 962 11.10
Fast Semvice Cost - -
{Gain)/Loss on Seitlements - -
Reimbursement Senice Cost - -
Total Service Cost 0.62 11.10
Interest Expense on DEO 2453 2568
Interest (Income) on Plan Assets - -
Interest {(Income) on Reimbursement Rights - -
Interest Expense on {Asset Ceiling) /! Onerous Liability - -

Total Net Interest Cost 24.53 25.68
Reimbursement of Other Long Term Benefits - -
Defined Benefit Cost included inP & L 34.15 3678
Remeasurements - Due to Demographic Assumptions - -
Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions (1.99)| 1.34
Femeasureaments - Due to Experience Adjusments {46.19)] (21.53)

{Retum] on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income) - -

{Return) on Reimbursement Rights - -
Changes in Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liabilty -
Total Remeasurements in OCI (48.1 {20.19)
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L and OCl {14.:!2}1 16.59
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32 In the opinion of the Board the current assets, loans and advances are not less than the stated value if
realised in ordinary course of business. The provisions for all known liabilities are adequate. There are no
contingent liabilities except stated, as informad by the management.

33. The Business of the company falls under a single segment i.e. Manufacturing of Cigarette and Smoking
Mixture. In view of the general classification notified by Central Government in exercise of powers conferred
u/s 129 of Companies Act, 2013for companies operating in single segment, the disclosure requirement as
per Indian Accounting Standard - 108 on "Operating Segment” are not applicable to the company. The
company's business is mainly concentrated in similar geographical, political and economic conditions;
hence disclosure for geographical segment is also not reguired.

34. Earnings Per Share: -

Tin lacs)
‘Earnings per share is computed as under:- 2021-22 2‘0[20—21
Frofit /(Loss)after tax available for equity shareholders (A) 901.19 80367
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (Nos.) (B) 11,994,000 10,756,542
Face value per equity share %) 10/- 10/-
Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B) () 7 551/ 7.471-

35 CSR Expenditure

Total expenditure incurrad on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities during the year ended March
31, 2022 is ¥ 8,00,000/- (during the year ended March 31, 2021 is < Nil). The Company’'s CSR activities
primarily focuses on programs that promote education.

(X in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) | Amountrequired to be spent by the 792 -
Company during the year
b} | Amount of expenditure incurred on purpose 5.00
other than construction/ acquisition of any
asset
c) Excess spend of prior years set off during - -
the year
d) Shortfall at the end of the year [(d}=(a)-(b}- - -
(cl]
a) Total of previous years shortfall - -
f} Reason for shortfall NA MNA
36. Disclosure on Financial Ratios:
. % Reason for
Ratio | Measure Methodology 2021-22 | 2020-21 Change A A
Decreasz in
trade
a) Current ratio Ciseant anspls ovarchinenl | g9y 233 | 5328w | BAyable die
liabilities | to less
procurement
at year end
. . Debt over total |
b) Debt equity ratio sharcholders equily 0.02 0.03 -14.15% | -
1
t) Debt serves EBIT over current debt 593 6.39 7.06% <
coverage ratiol
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PAT over total average

over average inventory

. e, oy a =
d) Return on equity % squity 11.74% | 10.54% 11.45%
Revenue from operations Due &0
:j} e fe;':‘ewables over average trade 4.81 6.48 -2587% mcrl;&ast._e "
rnover ratio et E{:};?ulgﬂ
Due to
increase in
adjusted
. eXpenses
f) Trade payables Adjusted expenses aver
turpover ratio average trade payables =04 Hhe AR dec?elie 2
average
trade
payabla
g) Met capital turnover | Revenue from operations 069 0.84 47 74% s
ratio over working capital | ' e
h) Net profit % MNet profit over revenue 2313% | 22.92% 0.91% -
|
iy EBITDA % EBITDA over revenue 30.46% | 36.42% -16.36% -
|
iV EBIT % EBIT over revenue 30.46% | 36.42% | -16.36% | -
k) Return on capital PEIT over average capital :
employed % employed 15.08% | 15.09% | -0.07% | -
|
)Stock Turnover Ratio | Revenue from operations 429 | -600% | -
I

Post-Employment Benefits
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 of India, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined
retirement benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible employees. Liabilities with regard to such
Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation and are charged to revenue in the period determined.

The following tables sets out the status of the benefit plan as per actuarial valuation as on March 31, 2022
and as recognised in the financial statements in respect of employee benefit schemes:

(Amt. in %)

A. Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

: Financial Year Ending | Financial Year Ending
Paticotars 31/03/2021 310312022
Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of year 36,679,634 35,559,161
Current Senvice Cost 1,110,320 961,874

Past Service Cost

(Gain) / Loss on settlements
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Interest Expense

2,567 574

2,453 582

Benefit Fayments from Plan Assels

Benefit Payments from Employer

(2,779,467)

(3,983 .552)

Seitlement Payments from Plan Assets

Seitlement Payments from Employer

Other {Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)

Increase / (Decrease) due o effect of any business
combination / divesture / fransfer)

Increase / (Decrease) due to Plan combination

Hemeasurements - Due to Demographic
Assumphions

Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions

134,012

(199,245)

Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments

(2,152,912)

(4,618 832)

Defined Benefit Obligation at end of year

35,559,161

30,172,988

Discount Rate

6.90%

7.10%

Salary Escalation Rate

6.00% p.a.

6.00% p.a.

B. Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

Financial Year Ending
31/03/2021

Financial Year Ending
31/03/2022

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year

Interast Income

Employer Contributions

Employer Direct Benefit Payments

2,779,467

3,983 552

Employer Direct Settlement Payments

Benefit Payments from Plan Assels

Benefit Payments from Employer

(2,779,467)

(3.983,552)

Settlement Payments from Plan Assets

Settlement Payments from Employer

Other (Employee Contribution, Taxes, Expenses)

Increase / (Decrease) due to effect of any business

Increase / (Decrease) due to Plan combination

Remeasurements - Beturn on Assets

{Excluding Interest Income)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of year

Weighted Average Asset Allocations at the year end

Equities

Bonds

Gifts

Insurance Policies

Total

We understand that Liability is not funded
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C. Components of Defined Benefit Cost

Particulars Financial ‘l":;::ﬂ E3r.‘|g;;§1| Financial Y?‘:ﬂ E;;g&;g
Current. Service Cost 1,110,320 951,874
Past Service Cost -
(Gain) / Loss on Settlements -
Reimbursement Service Cost -
Total Service Cost 1,110,320 961,874
Interest Expense on DBO 2567574 2,453 552
Interest (Income) on Plan Assets -
Interest (Income) on Reimbursement Rights -
Interest Expense on (Asset Ceiling) / Onerous .
Liability
Total Met Interest Cost 2,567,574 2,453,582
Reimbursement of Other Long Term Benefits -
Defined Benefit Cost includedin P & L 3,677,894 3,415,456
Hemeasurements - Due to Demographic .
Assumptions
Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions 134,012 {199,245)
Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments (2,152,912} (4,618,832)
(Return) on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest Income) -
(Return) on Reimbursement Rights -
Changes in Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liability -
Total Remeasurements in OCI (2,018,900) (4,818,077)
Total Defined Benefit Cost recognized in P&L 1,653,994 (1,402,621)
and OCI
Discount Rate 6.90% 7.10%

Salary Escalation Rate

6.00%

5.00%

0. Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

Sarficalars Financial Y?‘;ﬂ E;:;I‘;;% Financial ‘I’;;ﬂ?;lﬂng
Defined Benefit Obligation 35,559,181 30,172,988
Fair Value of Plan Assefs -
Funded Status 35,559,161 30,172,938
Effect of Asset Ceiling / Onerous Liability -
Net Defined Benefit Liability | [Asset) 35,559,161 30,172,938

E. Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) reconciliation
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3 Financial Year Ending | Financial Year Ending

Particulars 31/03/2021 31/03/2022
Net Defined BEenefit Liability/(Asset) at beginning 36.679.634 25559 161
ﬂ'f year L L] ¥ 1
Defined Benefit Cost included in P & L 3,677,684 3,415,456
Total Remeasurements included in OC/ (2,018,900} (4,818,077}
Net Transfer In / (Outl (Including the effect of any N
business combination / divesture)
Amount recognized due to Plan Combinations
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Employer Contributions
Employer Direct Benefit Payments (2,779 467) (3,983,552)
Emplayer Direct Settlement Payments
Credit fo Reimbursements
:'gatrﬂeﬁned Benefit Liability / (Assei) at end of 35,559,161 30.172.988
Summary of Financial & Demographic Assumptions
Valuation Date
Particulars — ;
' 310372021 3110372022
Discount Rate 6.90% 7.10%
Salary Escalation - First 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%
Salary Escalalion - After 5 Years 6.00% 6.00%
Expested Rate of Return on Plan Assets MIA NIA
Mortality Table IALM (2012-14) Table Ultimate
Disability Rate 5% of Mortality Rate 5% of Mortality Rate
Withdrawal Rate™ As per table below As per table below
Retirement Age 58 & 60 Years 58 & 60 Years
Average Future Service 71.56 8.42
“Withdrawal rates, based on age (per annum)
Particulars As on 31/03/2021 As on 31/03/2022
Upto 25 Years 8.00 % 8.00 %
26 to 30 Years 7.00 % .00 %
31 to 35 Years 6.00 % 6.00 %
36 to 40 Years 500 % 5.00 %
41 to 45 Years 4.00 % 4.00 %
46 to 50 Years 3.00 % 3.00 %
31 to 55 Years 200 % 2.00 %
Above 55 Years 1.00 % 1.00 %
33. Related party disclosures: -
{A) Enterprises where control exists (wholly owned subsidiaries). -
Sl No. Name Of Enterprise Sl No Name Of Enterprise
1 NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited 2 NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited
3 NTCIL Realty Private Limited 4 NTCIL Siliguri Estate Private Limited
(B) Other related parties with whom the company had transactions:
(i). Key Management Personnel and their relatives: -
S1.No. Name Designation /Relationship
1 Upmanyu Pathak Managing Director (upto 22.05.2021)
2 Privawart Jariwala Managing Director (w.e.f 22.05.2021)

(li). Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel/Major Sharsholders/Their Relatives have
Significant Influence: -

SIL.No. Mame
1 RDB Realty & Infrastructure Limited
Disclosure of transactions with related parties and cutstanding balances: -
. (Amt. in %)
. e : Enterprises over which e
Particulars KMP and their relatives KMP & their relatives Subsidiaries
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have significant
influence
Electricity | --- --- 9,26,701
ectricity Income
: £ (—) (7.38.767)
3,458,900 --- ---
R tion Paid s
emuneration Pai (8.45,548) (=) ()
S 28,38,00,000 2.16,04,130
L & Ad i S
oan vance given (—) () (2.64.93.609)
- 67,00,000 3,23,68,361
Loan & Advance given refund (—) () {1.%’8,65.954}
Interest Income L Hnaas L
() () (=)
Advance given against Salary i T i
() () ()
Advance given against Salary 4.00,000 - -
adjusted (90,000) (—) (—)
Balances outstanding:
Advance given against Salary [4.31],[][];}_} (__; (_:___}
- - 3,99.114
Ad i ;
vance given (=) 6= (1.11.63.345)
Trade Receivable i £ 1.65.605
() (=) (=)
MNote: - (i} Previous year figures have been given in brackets.
(i) As the liability of gratuity and compensated absence are provided on actuarial basis for the

company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the directors are not ascertainable and therefore not
included in the above

(i} Related party relationships are identified by the company on the basis of available information.
39. Additional Information, as required under Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises
consolidated as Subsidiary / Associates [ Joint Ventures:
Met Assets i.e. total assets .
minus total liabilities i b R
Name of the entity
' As % of As % of
consolidated [: m"—;::;] consolidated {: ::‘:::2;,
net assets profit or loss

i Parent: ) W, J _

ntc industries limited 71.55% 590862 49.30% 444 28

Subsidiaries:

Indian:

NTCIL Real Estate Private 21.58% 1782 41 35.78% 322.471
| Limited

MTCIL Infrastructure Private 6.87% 667.35 14.96% 134.79

Limited

NTCIL Realty Private Limited 0.00% 0.02 -0.01% -0.11

NTCIL Siliguri Private Limited 0.01% -0.76 0.03% | 001 |

Foreign

| | | |
Minority Interests in all subsidiaries
Indian: | - | - | - | -
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Foreign: = E 5 L

Associates (Investments as per the equity method)

Indian: - - - -

Foreign: = E 2 3

Joint Venture

Indian: - - - -
Foreign: - _ = 2

40. A suit has been filed against the company in the year 1999 for recovery of ¥ 2,00,00,000/- along with
interest which is still pending before the Hon'ble High Court, Kolkata. The company disputes the claim of the
party and as the matter is sub-judice no provision for interest has been made.

41. In the Year 2018-19, in the matter of SCN no C.No. V-SEIZURE (15) 90CE/CAL/-IVADJN/97i131-143 Dated
21041957 an assessment order-in-original no. 55/COMMR/CGST & CX KOLNORTH/2018-19 dated
16.03.2019 was passed by the Commissioner of CGST & CX partially confirming the duty demand of ¥
31,31,81,560/- and Penalty of ¥ 1,35,60,804/-. Your Company's appeal before CESTAT, Kolkata is pending
and is of view that its defence in grounds of appeal are factually correct and strong enough to get favourable
order from appeal authority.

42 In 2015 a group of minority shareholders had filed a suit against the company in the court of Learned Fourth
Civil Judge (Junior Division) at Sealdah, West Bengal and Learned third Civil Judge at Barasat, West
Bengal. Since the matter is subjudice in the court, any disclosures given at this moment would be
prejudicial to the interest of the company and that of the stakeholders.

43. Company's subsidiaries NTCIL Real Estate Private Limited and NTCIL Infrastructure Private Limited had
given a Corporate Guarantee of ¥ 200 crores each by creating security interest in favour of IFCI Lid (the
lender) inter alia, by way of equitable mortgage of immovable properties and guarantee against Corporate
Loan sanctioned to EMC Ltd. Both the companies have received notices Ufs 13(2) of SARFAESI Act, 2002
from IFCI Ltd stating the EMC Ltd. has failed and neglected to make payment of the instalments of principal,
interest and other monies amounting to ¥ 150.09 crores. IFCI Ltd. has demanded the companies to pay the
said amount within 60 days which was not accepted by the Companies and had filed an Appeal to Debt
Recovery Tribunal, Kolkata for relief which is pending.

44, Contingent liabilities & Guarantee given:
(Tin Lacs)
Particulars As at 31.03.22 As at 31.03.21
a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 144 54 14454
b} Disputed Liabilities relating to Central Excise Demand 3267 62 3267 62
c) Corporate Guarantee 40000.00 4000000
45, Foreign exchange earnings and ocutgo:
a) Earnings in foreign exchange:
{Tin Lacs)
e Year Ended Year Ended
pescHption 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
F.0.B Value of Export 1162.16 1211.42
b) OQOutgo in foreign exchange:
(Rsin Lacs)
Desciinis Year Ended "Té-af_End_éd" '
i 131.03.2022 31.03.2021
-Machines & Raw materials 62.36 415.16
Total 62.36 415.16
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46. The figures of previous year have been reclassified and regrouped wherever considered necessary

The accompanying notes 1 to 46 are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board
For R. RAMPURIA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo. 325211E

Priyawart Jariwala Niraj Sinha
Managing Director Director
CA Rajendra Rampuria
Partner
Membership No. 108771
Place: Kolkata Prem Chand Khator Sunil Kumar Varma
Date: The 30% day of May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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